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NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that the 40th Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of the Members of Blue Chip Tex Industries 
Limited will be held on Tuesday, 23rd September, 2025 at 11.45 am IST through Video Conferencing (“VC”) / Other 
Audio Visual Means (“OAVM”) to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1)	 To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year ended 31st 
March, 2025 together with the Reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon and in this regard, to consider 
and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following Resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

	 “RESOLVED THAT the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year ended 31st March, 2025 
and the reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon, as circulated to the Members, be and are hereby 
considered and adopted.”

2)	 To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Siddharth .A. Khemani (DIN: 08842398), who retires by rotation and, being eligible, 
offers himself for re-appointment and in this regard, to consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), 
the following Resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

	 “RESOLVED THAT in accordance with the provisions of Section 152 and other applicable provisions of the Companies 
Act, 2013 Mr. Siddharth .A. Khemani (DIN: 08842398), who retires by rotation at this Meeting be and is hereby appointed 
as a Director of the Company.”

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

3)	 To ratify the remuneration of Cost Auditors for the financial year 2025-26 and in this regard, to consider and if thought 
fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following Resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

	 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 148(3) and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies 
Act, 2013 (“Act”), (including any statutory modifications or re-enactments thereof, for the time being in force) read 
with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended from time to time, the Company hereby ratifies 
the remuneration of Rs.  40,000/- (Rupees Forty Thousand Only) plus taxes and reimbursement of out-of-pocket 
expenses incurred in connection with the cost audit, payable to M/s NKJ & Associates, Practising Cost Accountants, 
Navi Mumbai, (Firm Registration No.101893) who are appointed by the Board of Directors of the Company, as Cost 
Auditors, to conduct the audit of the cost records maintained by the Company for the financial year ending 2025-26.

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company (including any Committee thereof) be and is 
hereby authorised to do all acts and take all such steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this 
resolution.”

4)	 To appoint Secretarial Auditor of the Company and in this regard, to consider and if thought fit, to pass, the  following 
resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

	 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies 
Act, 2013, read with Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 
and Regulation 24A of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 [including 
any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force], the consent of the Members be 
and is hereby accorded for the appointment of M/s. DTNV & Co, Practicing Company Secretaries (Firm Registration 
No.: P2023MH094600), as the Secretarial Auditor of the Company for a term of five (5) consecutive financial years, 
commencing from the financial year 2025-26 till the financial year 2029-30, at such remuneration (plus applicable taxes 
and out-of-pocket expenses at actuals) and on such terms and conditions as may be fixed by the Board of Directors of 
the Company, based on the recommendation of the Audit Committee.

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorised to modify and/or 
revise the terms and conditions of the said appointment, including the remuneration of M/s. DTNV & Co as it may deem 
appropriate, and to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be necessary, proper, or expedient to give effect 
to this resolution.”

5)	  To re-appoint Mr. Shahin .N. Khemani (DIN: 03296813) as Managing Director of the Company and in this regard, to 
consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following Resolution as

	 Special Resolution:

	 “RESOLVED THAT in accordance with the provisions of sections 196, 197 and 203 read with Schedule V and all other 
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 
Personnel) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or re -enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force), 
Articles of Association of the Company and pursuant to the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration 
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Committee of the Company, consent of the Members of the Company be and is hereby accorded to re-appoint Mr. 
Shahin .N. Khemani (DIN: 03296813) as Managing Director of the Company for a period of 5 (five) years w.e.f. 1st 
September, 2025 to 31st August, 2030 (both days inclusive) not liable to retire by rotation on the following key terms and 
conditions including remuneration:

•	 Term: 1st September, 2025 to 31st August, 2030 (both days inclusive)

•	 Salary: Rs. 36,00,000/- p.a. (Rupees Thirty Six Lakhs per annum). The annual increment which will be effective 
1st April, each year, will be decided by the Board based on the recommendations of the Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee (‘NRC’). The recommendation of NRC will be based on Company performance and 
individual performance.

•	 Other payments: Reimbursement of out of pocket expenses incurred in the course of business of the Company.

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the aforesaid remuneration is subject to the condition that:

a. 	 the total remuneration payable in any financial year by way of salary, perquisites, commission and other allowances 
shall not exceed the overall limit of 5% (five percent) of the net profits of the Company as applicable to each of 
the Managing / Whole time Directors of the Company and / or 20% (twenty percent) of the net profits of the 
Company for all Managing / Whole-time Directors as approved by the Special Resolution in 35th Annual General 
Meeting of the Company held on 29th September, 2020 and in accordance with the provisions of Sections 197 
and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Schedule V including any statutory 
amendments, modifications or re-enactment thereof, as may be made thereto and for the time being in force or

b. 	 if the Remuneration exceeds the limits as prescribed in the provisions of Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013, 
the remuneration payable shall be within the maximum permissible limits specified under Section II of Part II of 
Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013 without obtaining the approval of the Central Government in case of no 
profits/inadequate profits;

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT notwithstanding anything contained in Section 197 and Schedule V of the Companies 
Act, 2013 or any amendment/re-enactment thereof or any revised/new schedule thereof, in the event of absence of 
profits or inadequate profits in any financial year, the salary, as mentioned above be paid as minimum remuneration to 
Mr. Shahin N. Khemani as the Managing Director of the Company;

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the consent of the Members of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the Board of 
Directors of the Company (hereinafter referred to as the ‘Board’ which term shall be deemed to include the Nomination 
and Remuneration Committee of the Board) to relocate, re-allocate, re-designate, vary, alter, increase, enhance or 
widen the terms and conditions of appointment and the remuneration payable to the appointee, from time to time, as 
they may in their discretion deem fit within the limits and conditions mentioned in this resolution;

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to this resolution, any one of the Directors of the Company 
be and is hereby authorised to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as it may, in its absolute discretion, deem 
necessary, proper or desirable and to settle any questions, difficulties or doubts that may arise in this regard and further 
to execute all necessary documents, deeds, applications, returns, letters and such other writings as may be considered 
necessary, proper, desirable or expedient.”

 By order of the Board of Directors

	 For Blue Chip Tex Industries Limited

 							        Sd/-

 Binita Gosalia
Place: Mumbai 					      Company Secretary & Compliance Officer
Date: 6th August 2025 	 				     Membership No. ACS 25806

Registered Office:
Plot no. 63-B, Danudyog Sahakari Sangh Limited,
Village Piparia, Silvassa, U.T. of Dadra & Nagar Haveli- 396 230
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Notes:
1)	 The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) vide its General Circular No. 10/2022 dated 28th December, 2022 latest 

being General Circular No. 09/2024 dated 19th September 2024 has allowed Companies whose Annual General 
Meeting (“AGM”) are due in the year 2025, to conduct their AGMs on or before 30th September, 2025, through Video 
Conferencing (“VC”) or any Other Audio Visual Means (“OAVM”) in accordance with the requirements laid down in Para 
3 and Para 4 of the General Circular No. 20/ 2020 dated 5th May, 2020, read with General Circular No. 14/2020 dated 
8th April, 2020 and General Circular No. 17/2020 dated 13th April, 2020 issued by the MCA (Collectively referred to as 
“MCA General Circulars”).

	 Accordingly, in compliance with the requirements of the aforesaid MCA General Circulars, the Company is convening 
its 40th AGM through VC/OAVM, without the physical presence of the Members at a common venue. The Company 
has availed the facility of Central Depository Services (India) Limited (“CDSL”) for convening the 40th AGM through VC/
OAVM. A detailed process in which the Members can attend the AGM through VC/OAVM has been enumerated in Note 
No. 21 of this Notice.

2)	 The Members can join the AGM through the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before and after the scheduled time of the 
commencement of the Meeting i.e. on Tuesday, 23rd September, 2025 from 11:30 a.m. till 12.00 noon. The attendance 
of the Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted for the purpose of ascertaining the quorum under 
Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”). The facility of participation at the AGM through VC/OAVM will be 
made available to at least 1000 Members on first come first served basis. This will not include large Shareholders 
(Shareholders holding 2% or more shareholding), Promoters, Institutional Investors, Directors, Key Managerial 
Personnel, the Chairpersons of the Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders 
Relationship Committee, Auditors etc, who are allowed to attend the AGM without restriction on account of first come 
first served basis.

3)	 The aforesaid MCA General Circular dated 5th May, 2022 read with MCA General Circulars dated 5th May, 2020 and 
13th April, 2020 and SEBI Circular No. SEBI/ HO/CFD/CMD2/CIR/P/2022/62 dated 13th May, 2022 read with SEBI 
Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD1/ CIR/P/2020/79 dated 12th May, 2020 and subsequent circulars issued in this regard, 
the latest being October 7, 2023 have granted relaxations to the Companies, with respect to printing and dispatching 
physical copies of the Annual Reports and Notices to its Members. Accordingly, the Company will only be sending soft 
copy of the Annual Report 2024-25 and Notice convening 40th AGM via e-mail, to the Members whose e-mail ids are 
registered with the Company or the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent (“RTA”) or Depository Participant/ Depository 
as on the cut-off date i.e. Friday, 22nd August, 2025.

4)	 For Members who have not registered their e-mail address and those Members who have become the Members of the 
Company after 22nd August, 2025, being the cut-off date for sending soft copy of the Notice of 40th AGM and Annual 
Report for Financial Year 2024-25, may refer to the Notice of 40th AGM and Annual Report available on the Company’s 
website, on the websites of CDSL and BSE.

5)	 Members may also note that the Notice convening the 40th AGM and the Annual Report for the financial year 2024-25, in 
Portable Document Format (“PDF”), will also be available on the Company’s website www.bluechiptexindustrieslimited.
com, website of CDSL i.e. www.evotingindia.com and on website of stock exchange viz. www.bseindia.com. The 
relevant documents, if any, referred to in the Notice of 40th AGM and the Annual Report will also be available for 
inspection electronically on request by a Member of the Company up to the date of the 40th AGM of the Company.

6)	 Pursuant to the provisions of the Act, a Member entitled to attend and vote at the AGM is entitled to appoint a proxy to 
attend and vote on his/her behalf and the proxy need not be a Member of the Company. Since this AGM is being held, 
pursuant to the MCA General Circulars through VC / OAVM, physical attendance of Members has been dispensed with. 
Accordingly, the facility for appointment of proxies by the Members will not be available for the AGM and hence the 
Attendance Slip and Proxy Form are not annexed to this Notice.

7)	 The relative Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Act, setting out material facts concerning the 
business under Item No. 3, Item No. 4 and Item No. 5 of the Notice, is annexed hereto. The relevant details, pursuant 
to Regulation 36(3) of the Listing Regulations and Secretarial Standard on General Meetings issued by the Institute of 
Company Secretaries of India, in respect of Director seeking re-appointment at this AGM is also annexed.

8)	 Pursuant to the provisions of Sections 112 and 113 of the Act, Members such as the President of India/ the Governor 
of a State/Body Corporate can authorize their representatives to attend the 40th AGM through VC/OAVM and cast 
their votes through e-Voting. Provided a scan copy (PDF) of the Board Resolution or governing body Resolution/
Authorization etc., authorizing such representative to attend the said AGM of the Company through VC/OAVM on its 
behalf and to vote through Remote e-Voting shall be sent to the Scrutinizer through the registered email address of the 
Member(s) at pramodshah361@gmail.com with a copy marked to the Company at bluechiptex@gmail.com.

9)	 Pursuant to Section 91 of the Act, the Register of Members and the Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain 
closed from Tuesday, 16th September, 2025 to Tuesday, 23rd September, 2025 (both days inclusive).

10)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”) has mandated the submission of Permanent Account Number 
(“PAN”) by every participant in securities market. Members holding shares in electronic form are, therefore, requested 
to submit their PAN to their Depository Participants (“DPs”) with whom they are maintaining their demat accounts. 
Further, as per SEBI Circular dated 20th April, 2018 all securities holders holding securities in physical form should 
submit their PAN and Bank account details to the RTA.
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	 The Members may kindly note that as per the amended Regulation 40 of the Listing Regulations w.e.f. 1st April, 
2019, transfer of the securities would be carried out in dematerialized form only. Members may also note that SEBI 
vide its Circular No. SEBI/HO/MIRSD/MIRSD_RTAMB/P/CIR/2022/8 dated 25th January, 2022 has mandated the 
listed Companies to issue securities in dematerialized form only while processing service requests viz. Issue of 
duplicate securities certificate; claim from unclaimed suspense account; renewal/ exchange of securities certificate; 
endorsement; sub-division/splitting of securities certificate; consolidation of securities certificates/ folios; transmission 
and transposition. Accordingly, Members are requested to make service requests by submitting a duly filled and signed 
Form ISR – 4, the format of which is available on the Company’s website i.e. www.bluechiptexindustrieslimited.com It 
may be noted that any service request can be processed only after the folio is KYC Compliant. Accordingly, Members 
holding shares in Physical mode are advised to demat their physical share holdings at the earliest.

11)	 Members holding shares in electronic form may note that as per the Circular issued by NSDL and CDSL, the Company 
is obliged to print on the dividend warrants, bank details of beneficiary owners / Members as furnished by these 
Depositories while making payment of dividend. The Company or its RTA cannot act on any request received directly 
from the Members holding shares in electronic form for any change of bank particulars or bank mandates. Members 
are requested to advise such changes only to their DPs.

12)	 SEBI and the MCA encourages paperless communication as a contribution to greener environment.
	 Members are advised to register/update their PAN, address, e-mail address, mobile no., signature and 

bank mandates (i.e. bank account number, name of the bank and the branch, 9 digit MICR Bank/Branch code and 
account type) to their DPs in case of shares held in electronic form and to the Company and/or its RTA in prescribed 
Form ISR-1 and/or ISR-2 as per the SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/MIRSD/MIRSD_RTAMB/P/CIR/2021/655 dated 3rd 
November, 2021, in case of shares held in physical form for receiving all communications, including Annual Report, 
Notices, Circulars etc. from the Company. The aforesaid Forms are available on website of the Company i.e. www.
bluechiptexindustrieslimited.com

13)	 Members holding shares in physical form and desirous of making a nomination in respect of their shareholdings in 
the Company, as permitted under Section 72 of the Act, read with Rule 19 of the Companies (Share Capital and 
Debentures) Rules, 2014, may fill Form SH-13 or in case Member desires to opt out or cancel the earlier nomination, 
he/ she may do so by filing Form ISR-3 or SH-14 as the case may be and send the same to the office of the Company 
and/or its RTA. In case of shares held in dematerialized form, the nomination/change in nomination should be lodged 
with their respective DPs.

	 Further SEBI vide its Circular No SEBI/HO/MIRSD/MIRSD-PoD-1/P/CIR/2023/37 dated March 16, 2023 mandated 
that the Members (holding securities in physical form), whose folio(s) are not updated with the KYC details (any of the 
details viz., PAN; Choice of Nomination; Contact Details; Mobile Number; Bank Account Details and signature) shall 
be eligible for any payment including dividend, interest or redemption in respect of such folios, only through electronic 
mode with effect from April 01, 2024, Members are requested to refer to and follow the process detailed in the said 
circular to update KYC https://www.sebi.gov.in/legal/circulars/mar-2023/common-and-simplified-norms-for-processing-
investor-s-service-requests-by-rtas-and-norms-for-furnishing-pan-kyc-details-and-nomination_69105.html

14)	 Members, who hold shares in multiple Demat accounts and those who hold shares in physical form in multiple folios in 
identical names or joint holding in the same order of names are advised to consolidate their holdings in single Demat 
account/Folio.

15)	 Members desiring any information on the annual financial statements or any other query related to the Annual Report 
are requested to write to the Company on or before Friday, 12th September, 2025 through email on bluechiptex@gmail.
com The same will be replied by the Company suitably.

16)	 Prevention of Frauds: Members are advised to exercise due diligence and notify their DP of any change in address, stay 
abroad or demise of any shareholder as soon as possible. Do not leave your Demat account dormant for long. Periodic 
statement of holdings should be obtained from the concerned DP and holdings should be verified to prevent frauds/ 
misuse, if any.

17)	 Confidentiality of Security Details: Do not disclose Folio Nos. / DP ID/ Client ID to unknown persons. Do not hand over 
signed blank transfer deeds, delivery instruction slips to any unknown persons.

18)	 IEPF Information:
	 Members who have not encashed their dividend warrants for the dividends declared for the financial years 2017-

18 onwards upto 2023-24 are requested to send a letter along with unclaimed dividend warrant, if any, or letter of 
undertaking for issue of duplicate dividend warrant/demand draft. Pursuant to the provisions of the Investor Education 
and Protection Fund Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016 (“IEPF Rules”), the Company has 
uploaded the details of unpaid and unclaimed amounts in respect of dividends for the financial years 2016-17 to 2022-
23 lying with the Company as on 31st March, 2024 on the website of the Ministry of Corporate Affairs in e-Form IEPF-2 
and also on the website of the Company (www.bluechiptexindustrieslimited.com)

	 In terms of Section 124 of the Act, dividend declared for the financial year 2017-18 will be due for transfer to the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund (“IEPF”) (established by the Central Government) by 10th October, 2025 as the same 
would remain unpaid for a period of seven years from the due date of payment. Members are requested to en-cash their 
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Dividend Warrants promptly. It may be noted that once the unclaimed dividend is transferred to the IEPF as above, no 
claim shall lie with the Company in respect of such amount.

	 Attention of Members is invited to the provisions of Section 124(6) of the Act read with IEPF Rules, as amended from 
time to time, which inter alia requires the Company to transfer the Equity Shares in respect of which the dividend has 
remained unpaid or unclaimed for a continuous period of seven years, to a Demat account of the Investor Education 
and Protection Fund Authority (“IEPF Authority”). The said shares, once transferred to the said Demat account of the 
IEPF Authority can be claimed only after following the procedure prescribed under the said IEPF Rules.

	 Therefore, Members are requested to claim their unpaid dividend pertaining to the financial year 2017-18 to 2023-24 as 
soon as possible, so that shares in respect of which the dividend is pending are not transferred to the Demat Account 
of IEPF authority at appropriate date.

19)	 Since the ensuing AGM will be convened through VC/OAVM, Members can opt for one mode of voting i.e. either by 
Remote e-Voting or through e-Voting at the time of AGM. Only those Members, who are present in the AGM through 
VC/OAVM facility and have not cast their vote on Resolutions through Remote e-Voting or are otherwise not barred from 
doing so, shall be allowed to vote through e-Voting system in the Meeting.

	 However, in case Members cast their vote both by Remote e-Voting and e-Voting at the time of AGM, then voting done 
through Remote e-Voting shall prevail and voting done by e-Voting at the time of AGM will be treated as invalid. The 
voting right of all Members shall be in proportion to their shares in the Paid Up Equity Share Capital of the Company as 
on the cut-off date i.e Tuesday, 16th September, 2025.

20)	 Voting through electronic means:
	 Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Act read with Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and Administration) 

Rules, 2014, as amended and Regulation 44 of the Listing Regulations, as amended and Secretarial Standards on 
General Meetings (SS-2) issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India, and MCA Circulars dated 5th May, 
2022 read with MCA Circulars dated 8th April, 2020, 13th April, 2020 and 5th May, 2020 the Company is pleased to 
provide facility of Remote e-Voting and e-Voting at the time of AGM, to its Members in respect of the business to be 
transacted at the 40th AGM.

	 The Company has appointed Mr. Pramod .S. Shah, Practising Company Secretary (Membership No. FCS 334), Partner, 
M/s. Pramod .S. Shah & Associates as the Scrutinizer for conducting the Remote e-Voting and the e-Voting process at 
the time of AGM in a fair and transparent manner.

21)	 THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDRES FOR REMOTE E-VOTING AND E-VOTING DURING AGM AND 
JOINING MEETING THROUGH VC/OAVM ARE AS UNDER:

Step 1	 : Access through Depositories CDSL/NSDL e-Voting system in case of individual shareholders holding shares in 
demat mode.

Step 2	 : Access through CDSL e-Voting system in case of shareholders holding shares in physical mode and non-individual 
shareholders in demat mode.
i.	 The Remote e-Voting period begins on Friday, 19th September, 2025 at 9:00 a.m. and ends on Monday, 22nd 

September, 2025 at 5:00 p.m. During this period shareholders’ of the Company, holding shares either in physical 
form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date i.e. 16th September, 2025 may cast their vote electronically. 
The Remote e-Voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter.

ii.	 Shareholders who have already voted prior to the AGM date through Remote e-Voting would not be entitled to 
vote at the time of AGM.

iii.	 Pursuant to SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated 9th December, 2020, under Regulation 
44 of the Listing Regulations, listed entities are required to provide Remote e-Voting facility to its shareholders, in 
respect of all Shareholders’ Resolutions. However, it has been observed that the participation by the public non-
institutional shareholders/retail shareholders is at a negligible level.

	 Currently, there are multiple e-Voting service providers (“ESPs”) providing e-Voting facility to listed Companies in 
India. This necessitates registration on various ESPs and maintenance of multiple user IDs and passwords by the 
shareholders.

	 In order to increase the efficiency of the voting process, pursuant to a public consultation, it has been decided to enable 
e-Voting to all the demat account holders, by way of a single login credential, through their demat accounts/ websites of 
Depositories/ Depository Participants. Demat account holders would be able to cast their vote without having to register 
again with the ESPs, thereby, not only facilitating seamless authentication but also enhancing ease and convenience 
of participating in e-Voting process.

Step 1	 : Access through Depositories CDSL/NSDL e-Voting system in case of individual shareholders holding shares in 
demat mode.
iv.	 In terms of SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated 9th December, 2020 on e-Voting facility 

provided by listed Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote 
through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised 
to update their mobile number and email id in their demat accounts in order to access e-Voting facility.
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	 Pursuant to the aforesaid SEBI Circular, login method for e-Voting and joining virtual Meeting for Individual shareholders 
holding securities in Demat mode is given below:

Type of shareholders Login method
Individual Shareholders 
holding securities in Demat 
mode with CDSL

1.	 Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login through their existing 
user id and password. Option will be made available to reach e-Voting page without 
any further authentication. The URLs for users to login to Easi / Easiest are https://
web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login or visit www.cdslindia.com and click on Login 
icon and select New System Myeasi.

2.	 After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e-Voting option for 
eligible Companies where the e-Voting is in progress as per the information provided 
by Company. On clicking the e-Voting option, the user will be able to see e-Voting 
page of the e-Voting service provider for casting your vote during the Remote e-Voting 
period or joining virtual Meeting & voting during the Meeting. Additionally, there are 
also links provided to access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers i.e. CDSL/ 
NSDL/KARVY/LINKINTIME, so that the user can visit the e-Voting service provider’s 
website directly.

3.	 If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available at https://
web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistration.

4.	 Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing Demat Account 
Number and PAN No. from a link available on www.cdslindia.com home page or click 
on https://evoting.cdslindia.com/Evoting/EvotingLogin. The system will authenticate 
the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the Demat 
Account. After successful authentication, user will be able to see the e-Voting option 
where the e-Voting is in progress and also able to directly access the system of all 
e-Voting Service Providers.

Individual Shareholders 
holding securities in Demat 
mode with NSDL

1.	 If you are already registered for NSDL IDeAS facility, please visit the e-Services 
website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: https://eservices.
nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of 
e-Services is launched, click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login” which 
is available under ‘IDeAS’ section. A new screen will open. You will have to enter 
your User ID and Password. After successful authentication, you will be able to see 
e-Voting services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting services and you will 
be able to see e-Voting page. Click on Company name or e-Voting service provider 
name and you will be re-directed to e-Voting service provider website for casting your 
vote during the Remote e-Voting period or joining virtual Meeting & voting during the 
Meeting.

2.	 If the user is not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is available 
at https://eservices.nsdl.com. Select “Register Online for IDeAS “Portal or click at 
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp

3.	 Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: 
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once 
the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is 
available under ‘Shareholder/ Member’ section. A new screen will open. You will have 
to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number hold with NSDL), 
Password/ OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the screen. After successful 
authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein you can see 
e-Voting page. Click on Company name or e-Voting service provider name and you 
will be redirected to e-Voting service provider website for casting your vote during the 
Remote e-Voting period or joining virtual Meeting & voting during the Meeting.

4.	 For OTP based login you can click on  https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/
evoting/evotinglogin.jsp. You will have to enter your 8-digit DP ID, 8-digit Client Id, 
PAN No., Verification code and generate OTP. Enter the OTP received on registered 
email id/mobile number and click on login. After successful authentication, you will 
be redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on 
company name or e-Voting service provider name and you will be re-directed to 
e-Voting service provider website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting 
period or joining virtual Meeting & voting during the Meeting.
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Individual Shareholders 
(holding securities in demat 
mode) login through their 
Depository Participants

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through your 
Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. After successful 
login, you will be able to see e-Voting option. Once you click on e-Voting option, you will 
be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful authentication, wherein 
you can see e-Voting feature. Click on Company name or e-Voting service provider 
name and you will be redirected to e-Voting service provider’s website for casting your 
vote during the Remote e-Voting period or joining virtual Meeting & voting during the 
Meeting.

	 Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forgot User ID and 
Forgot Password option available at abovementioned website.

	 Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues related to login through 
Depository i.e. CDSL and NSDL:

Login type Helpdesk details

Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in Demat mode with CDSL

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL helpdesk by 
sending a request at helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at toll free 
no. 1800 22 09911

Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in Demat mode with NSDL

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL helpdesk by 
sending a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at: 022 - 4886 7000 and 022 
- 2499 7000

Step 2 : Access through CDSL e-Voting system in case of shareholders holding shares in physical mode and non-individual 
shareholders in demat mode.

v.	 Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual Meeting for Physical shareholders and shareholders other than 
individual holding in Demat form:

1.	 The shareholders should log on to the e-Voting website www.evotingindia.com.

2.	 Click on “Shareholders” module.

3.	 Now enter your User ID

a)	 For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID,

b)	 For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID,

c)	 Shareholders holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with the Company.

4.	 Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login.

5.	 If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and voted on an earlier 
e-Voting of any Company, then your existing password is to be used.

6.	 If you are a first time user follow the steps given below:

For Physical shareholders and other than individual shareholders holding 
shares in Demat.

PAN •	 Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric PAN issued by Income Tax Department 
(Applicable for both Demat Members as well as Physical Members)

•	 Shareholders who have not updated their PAN with the Company/Depository 
Participant are requested to use the sequence number sent by Company/RTA 
or contact Company/RTA.

Dividend Bank Details
OR Date of Birth (DOB)

•	 Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format) as 
recorded in your demat account or in the Company records in order to login.

•	 If both the details are not recorded with the depository or Company, please 
enter the Member Id/Folio No in the Dividend Bank details field.

 (vi) 	 After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab.

 (vii) 	Shareholders holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selection screen. However, 
shareholders holding shares in demat form will now reach ‘Password Creation’ menu wherein they are required 
to mandatorily enter their login password in the new password field. Kindly note that this password is to be also 
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used by the demat account holders for voting for Resolutions of any other Company on which they are eligible 
to vote, provided that Company opts for e-Voting through CDSL platform. It is strongly recommended not to 
share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep your password confidential.

 (viii) 	For Shareholders holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-Voting on the Resolutions 
contained in this Notice.

 (ix) 	 Click on the EVSN for the relevant <Company Name> on which you choose to vote.

 (x) 	 On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the same the option “YES/NO” for 
voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies that you assent  to the Resolution and 
option NO implies that you dissent to the Resolution.

 (xi) 	 Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the entire Resolutions details.

(xii) 	 After selecting the Resolution you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A confirmation box  will be 
displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK”, else to change your vote, click on  “CANCEL” and 
accordingly modify your vote.

 (xiii) Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the Resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

 (xiv) You can also take out print of the voting done by you by clicking on “Click here to print” option on the voting page.

 (xv) 	If a demat account holder has forgotten the login password then Enter the User ID and the image verification code 
and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by the system.

 (xvi) There is also an optional provision to upload Board Resolution / Power of Attorney if any uploaded, which will be 
made available to scrutinizer for verification.

xvii.	 Additional Facility for Non – Individual Shareholders and Custodians – For Remote Voting only:

1.	 Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI, etc.) and Custodians are required to log 
on to www.evotingindia.com and register themselves in the “Corporates” module.

2.	 A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should be emailed to 
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

3.	 After receiving the login details a Compliance User should be created using the admin login and password. 
The Compliance User would be able to link the account(s) for which they wish to vote on.

4.	 The list of accounts linked in the login will be mapped automatically & can be delink in case of any wrong 
mapping.

5.	 A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney which they have issued in favour of the 
Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the system for the scrutinizer to verify the same.

6.	 Alternatively Non-Individual shareholders are required to send the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority 
letter etc. together with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory who are authorized to 
vote, to the Scrutinizer at the email address i.e. pramodshah361@gmail.com and to the Company at the 
email address i.e. bluechiptex@gmail.com, if they have voted from individual tab and not uploaded same in 
the CDSL e-Voting system for the scrutinizer to verify the same.

A.	 INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS ATTENDING THE 40TH AGM THROUGH VC/OAVM & E-VOTING DURING 
MEETING ARE AS UNDER:

1.	 The procedure for attending Meeting & e-Voting on the day of the AGM is same as the instructions mentioned 
above for Remote e-Voting.

2.	 The link for VC/OAVM to attend Meeting will be available where the EVSN of the Company will be displayed after 
successful login as per the instructions mentioned above for Remote e-Voting.

3.	 Shareholders who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the Meeting. However, they will 
not be eligible to vote at the time of AGM.

4.	 Shareholders are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops / IPads for better experience.

5.	 Further shareholders will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to avoid any disturbance 
during the Meeting.

6.	 Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop connecting via 
Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their respective network. It is therefore 
recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches.
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7.	 Shareholders who would like to express their views/ask questions during the Meeting may register themselves as 
a speaker by sending their request in advance at least 7 days prior to the Meeting mentioning their name, demat 
account number/folio number, email id, mobile number at bluechiptex@gmail.com The shareholders who do not 
wish to speak during the AGM but have queries may send their queries in advance 7 days prior to the Meeting 
mentioning their name, demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile number at bluechiptex@gmail.com 
These queries will be replied to by the Company suitably by email or at the time of AGM.

8.	 Those shareholders who have registered themselves as a speaker will only be allowed to express their views/ask 
questions during the Meeting.

9.	 Only those shareholders, who are present in the AGM through VC/OAVM facility and have not casted their vote 
on the Resolutions through Remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote 
through e-Voting system available during the AGM.

10.	 If any Votes are cast by the shareholders through the e-Voting available during the AGM and if the same shareholders 
have not participated in the Meeting through VC/OAVM facility, then the votes cast by such shareholders shall be 
considered invalid as the facility of e-Voting during the Meeting is available only to the shareholders attending the 
Meeting.

B.	 PROCESS FOR THOSE SHAREHOLDERS WHOSE EMAIL ADDRESSES ARE NOT REGISTERED WITH THE 
DEPOSITORIES / COMPANY FOR OBTAINING LOGIN CREDENTIALS FOR E-VOTING FOR THE RESOLUTIONS 
PROPOSED IN THIS NOTICE:

1.	 For Physical shareholders- please provide necessary details like Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned copy 
of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self-attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self-attested 
scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to Company’s email id i.e. bluechiptex@gmail.com / RTA’s email id i.e. 
investor@bigshareonline.com.

2.	 For Demat shareholders – Please update your email id & mobile no. with your respective Depository Participant.

3.	 For Individual Demat shareholders – Please update your email id & mobile no. with your respective Depository 
Participant which is mandatory while e-Voting & joining virtual Meetings through Depository.

	 If you have any queries or issues regarding attending AGM & e-Voting from the CDSL e-Voting System, you can write 
an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at toll free no. 1800 22 09911.

	 All grievances connected with the facility for voting by electronic means may be addressed to Mr. Rakesh Dalvi, Sr. 
Manager, Central Depository Services (India) Limited, A Wing, 25th Floor, Marathon Futurex, Mafatlal Mill Compounds, 
N M Joshi Marg, Lower Parel (East), Mumbai - 400013 or send an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or call on 
toll free no. 1800 22 09911.

	 The results on voting of Resolutions will be declared on Wednesday, 24th September, 2025. The results declared 
along with the scrutinizer’s report will be placed on the website of the Company i.e. www.bluechiptexindustrieslimited.
com and website of CDSL i.e. www.evotingindia.com immediately after the result is declared by the Chairman or any 
other person authorized by him and will simultaneously be forwarded to BSE Limited, where the Equity Shares of the 
Company are listed.

22)	 Since the 40th AGM will be held through VC/OAVM, the Route Map to the venue of AGM as per the requirements of 
Secretarial Standards – 2 is not annexed to this Notice.
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT

(Pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013)

Item No. 3:

The Company is required under Section 148(3) of the Act read with the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, 
as amended from time to time, to have the audit of its cost records for products covered under the Companies (Cost Records 
and Audit) Rules, 2014 conducted by a Cost Accountant in Practice.

The Board of Directors of the Company has on the recommendation of the Audit Committee approved the appointment and 
remuneration of M/s NKJ & Associates, Practising Cost Accountant, Navi Mumbai, (Firm Registration No.101893) as the Cost 
Auditor of the Company for the Financial Year 2025-26.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 148(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 14 of the Companies (Audit 
and Auditors) Rules, 2014, the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors as recommended by the Audit Committee and 
approved by the Board of Directors has to be ratified by the Members of the Company. Accordingly, the consent of the 
Members is sought for passing an Ordinary Resolution as set out at Item No. 3 of the Notice for ratification of the remuneration 
payable to the Cost Auditor of the Company for the Financial Year 2025-26.

The Board recommends the said Resolution set out at Item No. 3 of this Notice to be passed as an Ordinary Resolution by 
the Members.

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives are in any way concerned or interested or deemed to be 
concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the proposed Resolution as set out at Item No. 3 of the Notice.

Item No. 4: To consider appointment of Secretarial Auditor of the Company and fix their remuneration

Pursuant to the recent amendment to Regulation 24A of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI LODR Regulations”), which shall come into effect from 1st April, 2025, 
the appointment of Secretarial Auditor(s) is now required to be approved by the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting 
of the Company.

As per the amended Regulation, the tenure of the Secretarial Auditor shall be:

•	 In case of an individual Company Secretary in Practice: one term of five (5) consecutive years;

•	 In case of a firm of Company Secretaries in Practice: a maximum of two (2) terms of five (5) consecutive years each.

It is further clarified that any prior association of the individual or firm as the Secretarial Auditor of the Company before 31st 
March, 2025, shall not be considered for the purpose of calculating the aforesaid term.

M/s. DTNV & Co, Practising Company Secretaries firm is peer-reviewed, bearing Peer Review Certificate No.: 6857/2025 
and holds a valid Peer Review Certificate issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India. Mrs. Dhanashree Talwelkar 
(having M. No. ACS 26254, COP no. 14394), Partner of DTNV & Co., specializes in providing high quality professional 
service and solving complexity relating to various corporate law matters.

The Board of Directors, at its meeting held on 21st May, 2025, based on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, has 
approved the appointment of M/s. DTNV & Co, Company Secretaries, as the Secretarial Auditor of the Company for a term of 
five (5) consecutive years commencing from the financial year 2025–26, at a remuneration of Rs. 72,000/- (Rupees Seventy 
Two Thousand Only) plus applicable taxes for the financial year ending 31st March, 2026. The remuneration for the remaining 
years of the term shall be fixed/revised by the Board of Directors of the Company, based on the recommendation of the Audit 
Committee.

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives are, in any way, concerned or interested, 
financially or otherwise, in the said resolution.

The Board recommends the resolution set out at Item No. 4 of the accompanying Notice for approval of the Members by way 
of an Ordinary Resolution.

Item No. 5: To re-appoint Mr. Shahin .N. Khemani (DIN: 03296813) as the Managing Director of the Company

The Board has, based on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and considering the 
increased activities, responsibilities and contribution of Mr. Shahin .N. Khemani in development and growth of the Company 
re-appointed Mr. Shahin .N. Khemani as the Managing Director of the Company for period of 5 (five) years w.e.f. 1st September, 
2025 to 31st August, 2030, subject to the members approval at this Annual General Meeting on the key terms and conditions 
as set out in the Resolution and as enumerated in the Letter of Appointment dated 6th August, 2025 entered into between the 
Company and Mr. Shahin .N. Khemani.
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Mr. Shahin .N. Khemani aged 40 years has done his Bachelor of Management Studies from Mumbai University and holds 
Master’s Degree in Technology Entrepreneurship from University of London, U.K.

Mr. Shahin .N. Khemani was appointed as Director of the Company by the members at the 26th Annual General Meeting 
of the Company held on 11th August, 2011 and thereafter re-designated and appointed as Managing Director in 35th Annual 
General Meeting of the Company. He has been associated with the Company as Director for over a decade and has over 14 
years of experience in Textile Industry. He is well-versed in understanding Textile Industry and is equally excellent in ensuring 
growth by improving productivity, cost control and consistently improving quality. He had been actively involved in business 
strategy, business development and research and development functions in the Company. With his support the Company has 
consistently delivered value to its customers and all stakeholders.

Mr. Shahin .N. Khemani is not disqualified from being appointed as Director in terms of Section 164 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and has given his consent to act as Managing Director of the Company. Mr. Shahin .N. Khemani satisfies all 
the conditions set out in Part-I of Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013 (including any amendments thereto) as also the 
conditions set out under sub-section (3) of Section 196 of the Companies Act, 2013 for being eligible for his appointment.

Mr. Shahin .N. Khemani is also one of the Promoter of the Company and holds 70880 equity shares (3.61% of total no. of 
shares) of the Company.

Disclosure under Regulation 36(3) of the Listing Regulations and Secretarial Standard-2 issued by the Institute of Company 
Secretaries of India are set out in the Annexure to the Explanatory Statement.

Letter of Appointment dated 6th August, 2025 entered into between the Company and Mr. Shahin .N. Khemani is available 
for inspection.

Except, Mr. Shahin .N. Khemani, Managing Director and their relatives to the extent of their shareholding interest, if any, in 
the Company, none of the other Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives are concerned or interested, financially 
or otherwise, in the Resolution at Item No. 5 of the Notice.

The Board recommends the said resolution proposed vide Item No. 5 to be passed as Special Resolution by the members.

		

 By order of the Board of Directors
 					      For Blue Chip Tex Industries Limited

							       Sd/-
 						       Binita Gosalia
Place: Mumbai 					      Company Secretary & Compliance Officer
Date: 6th August 2025			   			    Membership No. ACS 25806

Registered Office:
Plot no. 63-B, Danudyog Sahakari Sangh Limited,
Village Piparia, Silvassa, U.T. of Dadra & Nagar Haveli- 396 230
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ANNEXURE TO ITEM NO. 2

Details of the Directors seeking appointment/re-appointment in the forthcoming AGM

[Pursuant to 36(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, and Secretarial 
Standard on General Meetings]

Particulars Item no. 3

Name of the Director : Mr. Siddharth .A. Khemani
DIN : 08842398
Nationality : Indian
Date of appointment on the Board : 01/10/2020
Qualifications & Experience (including expertise in 
specific functional area)

: B.Com from Mumbai University.
Over more than 9 years of experience in Textile Industry.

Number of shares held in the Company : 21,140
List of the directorships held in other Companies 
(Listed or not)

: Beekaylon Synthetics Private Limited

Number of Board Meetings attended during the year : 4
Chairman/Member in the Committees of the Board of 
Companies in which he is Director

: Member of Nomination & Remuneration Committee & 
Stakeholder’s Relationship Committee in Blue Chip Tex 
Industries Limited.

Relationship between Directors inter-se : Brother of Mr. Rahul .A. Khemani, CFO & Director of
the Company.

Remuneration details : Sitting Fees of Rs. 5,000/- per Board Meeting.

 		

 By order of the Board of Directors
				     For Blue Chip Tex Industries Limited

			   Sd/-
 Binita Gosalia

Place: Mumbai 					      Company Secretary & Compliance Officer
Date: 6th August 2025 				     Membership No. ACS 25806

Registered Office:
Plot no. 63-B, Danudyog Sahakari Sangh Limited,
Village Piparia, Silvassa, U.T. of Dadra & Nagar Haveli- 396 230
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Dear Members,

Your Directors are pleased to present the 40th Annual Report of Blue Chip Tex Industries Limited (“your Company” or “the 
Company”) along with the Audited Financial Statements for the Financial Year (“FY”) ended 31st March, 2025.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE:

The financial performance of your Company for the FY ended 31st March, 2025, is summarized below:

 ` In Lakhs

Particulars FY 2024-25 FY 2023-24

Revenue from Operations 24,928.96 25,558.33
Other Income 50.30 37.94
Total Income 24,979.26 25,596.27

Expenses

Expenses except depreciation & amortization expense 24,844.86 25,269.97
Depreciation & amortization expense 255.25 254.92
Total Expenses 25,100.11 25,524.89

Profit before depreciation & amortization expense 134.40 326.30
Less: Depreciation & amortization expense 255.25 254.92
Profit before Tax (120.85) 71.38

Less: Tax Expenses

Current tax for the current year - 41.80
Current tax related to earlier years 2.63 (0.92)
Deferred tax (22.87) (21.86)
Profit after tax (100.61) 52.36

Other Comprehensive income (2.75) (10.79)

Total income for the year (103.36) 41.57

Earnings per share (in ) (Basic and Diluted) (5.11) 2.66

Amount transferred to Retained Earnings (103.36) 41.57

Transfer to General Reserve - -

The abovementioned financial performance highlights are an abstract of the Financial Statements of your Company for the 
FY 2024-25. The detailed Financial Statements forms part of this Annual Report and are also uploaded on website of your 
Company i.e. www.bluechiptexindustrieslimited.com

1.	 Performance Highlights:

	 The revenue from operations for the financial year 2024-25 declined by 2.46% and stood at ̀  24,928.96 lakhs compared 
to ` 25,558.33 lakhs in the previous financial year. The loss for the financial year 2024-25 was `100.61 lakhs as 
compared to profit of ` 52.36 lakhs in previous financial year.

2.	 Dividend:

	 Due to loss during FY 2024-25, the Board of Directors expresses its inability to recommend any dividend on equity 
shares for the year under review.

3.	 Transfer to Reserves:

	 Your Company did not transfer any sum to the General Reserve for the Financial Year under review.

4.	 Annual Return:

	 Pursuant to Section 134(3)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”), the draft annual return for Financial Year 2023-
24 prepared in accordance with Section 92(3) of the Act is made available on the website of the Company i.e. www.
bluechiptexindustrieslimited.com under ‘Annual Report’ section.
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5.	 Details of Frauds reported by the Auditors under Section 143(12) of Companies Act, 2013:

	 There are no frauds reported by the Auditor which are required to be disclosed under Section 143(12) of the Act.

6.	 Board Meetings:

	 The Board met four times through video conferencing during the FY 2024-25 on 29th May 2024, 7th August 2024, 6th 
November 2024 and 11th February 2025. The necessary quorum was present for all the Meetings. Also, the Board of 
Directors of your Company passed a Resolution by Circulation on 6th June 2024, 5th March 2025 and 28th March 2025.

7.	 Changes in Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

	 During the year under review there was no changes in the Composition of the Board of the Directors.

	 During the year, Mrs. Meena Jain (ACS No: 64159), Company Secretary & Compliance Officer of the Company resigned 
with effect from 31st October 2024. Further, Ms. Binita Gosalia (ACS No: 25806) was appointed as Company Secretary 
& Compliance Officer of the Company with effect from 4th November, 2024.

	 In accordance with the provisions of Section 152 of the Act Mr. Siddharth .A. Khemani, Director (DIN No: 08842398) 
of your Company retires by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and being eligible, offers himself for re-
appointment.

8.	 Independent Directors:

	 Pursuant to Section 134(3)(d) of the Act, the Company confirms having received necessary declarations from all 
the Independent Directors under Section 149(7) of the Act and Regulation 25(8) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“the Listing Regulations”) declaring that they meet the criteria of 
independence laid down under Section 149(6) of the Act and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the Listing Regulations. All the 
Independent Directors of Company have complied with the provisions of sub rule (1) and (2) of Rule 6 of the Companies 
(Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 by registering themselves under data bank of Independent 
Director.

	 All Independent Directors are familiarized with your Company, their roles, rights and responsibilities in your Company, 
nature of the industry in which Company operates, business model, strategy, operations and functions of your Company 
through its Executive Directors and Senior Managerial Personnel.

	 Company’s Independent Directors meet at least once in every financial year without the presence of the Executive 
Directors of your Company. During the year under review, one Meeting of Independent Directors was held on 23rd 
January, 2025.

	 During the year under review, Company did not have any pecuniary relationship or transactions with any of its 
Independent Directors, other than payment of sitting fees.

	 In the opinion of the Board, the Independent Directors of the Company meet the requirements of integrity, expertise and 
experience as required by the Company and have the Proficiency required for their appointment as an Independent 
Director on the Board of the Company.

9.	 Particulars of Remuneration to Directors and Employees:

	 The statement containing particulars in terms of Section 197(12) of the Act read with rule 5(1), Rule 5(2) and Rule 5(3) 
of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is annexed herewith as 
“Annexure IV”.

10.	 Performance Evaluation:

	 Pursuant to the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board has carried out an Annual Evaluation of its 
own performance, performance of the Individual Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Committees of Board, based 
on the evaluation criteria defined by Nomination and Remuneration Committee (“NRC”) for performance evaluation 
process of the Board, its Committees, Directors and Key Managerial Personnel. All the evaluation is carried out at 
Board of Director’s Meeting, Independent Director’s Meeting and NRC Meeting. Having regard to the industry, size and 
nature of business your Company is engaged and the evaluation methodology adopted is in the opinion of the Board, 
sufficient, appropriate and is found to be serving the purpose.

	 Performance evaluation of Independent Directors was conducted by the Board of Directors, excluding the Director 
being evaluated. The criteria for performance evaluation of Independent Directors laid down by the Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee include ethics, knowledge and proficiency, diligence, efforts for personal development, 
independence in decision making, etc. Similarly, performance evaluation of the Non–Independent Directors was 
carried out by the Independent Directors of your Company at its separate Meeting. Your Directors also expressed their 
satisfaction with the evaluation process.
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11.	 Auditors:

(i) Statutory Auditors and their Report

	 At the 37th Annual General Meeting held on 27th September, 2022, M/s. D K P & Associates, Chartered Accountants, 
(Firm Registration No. 126305W) were appointed as the Statutory Auditors of your Company to hold office for 
a term of 5 years commencing from the conclusion of 37th Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of 42nd 
Annual General Meeting subject to ratification by Members in each Annual General Meeting. However, as per 
the Companies (Amendment) Act, 2017, provisions of Section 139 of the Act have been amended, wherein, the 
requirement of ratification of appointment of Statutory Auditors at every Annual General Meeting has been done 
away with. Accordingly, the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors of your Company during their respective 
Meetings held on 26th May, 2022 have considered and approved the re-appointment of M/s. D K P & Associates, 
Chartered Accountants, (Firm Registration No. 126305W) as the Statutory Auditors of your Company, for further 
period of 5 years i.e. from the conclusion of the 37th Annual General Meeting until the conclusion of the 42nd 
Annual General Meeting of your Company to be held in the year 2027.

	 The Notes on financial statements referred to in the Auditors’ Report are self-explanatory and do not call for any 
further comments. The Auditors’ Report does not contain any qualification(s), reservation(s) or adverse remark(s).

(ii) 	 Secretarial Auditors and their Report

	 In terms of Section 204 of the Act, the Board of Directors of your Company on the recommendation of the 
Audit Committee have appointed M/s. DTNV & Co, Practicing Company Secretaries, Mumbai as the Secretarial 
Auditors of your Company to carry out Secretarial Audit from the financial year 2025-26 till financial year 2029-30.

	 Your Company has obtained Secretarial Audit Report for the Financial Year 2024-25 in the prescribed Form 
MR-3 from M/s Pramod .S. Shah and Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries, which forms part of the 
Annual Report and is annexed as “Annexure I” to this Report. The report does not contain any qualification(s), 
reservation(s) or adverse remark(s) which calls for any explanation from your Board of Directors.

(iii) 	 Cost Auditors and their Report

	 In terms of the provisions of Section 148 of the Act read with the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, 
as amended from time to time, the Board of Directors, based on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, 
have re-appointed M/s. NKJ & Associates, Practicing Cost Accountants, Mumbai (Registration No. 101893), as 
Cost Auditor of the Company for conducting the Cost Audit for the Financial Year 2025-26, on a remuneration 
as mentioned in the Notice of 40th Annual General Meeting. A Certificate from M/s. NKJ & Associates, Practicing 
Cost Accountants, has been received to the effect that their appointment as Cost Auditor of the Company, if made, 
would be in accordance with the limits specified under Section 141 of the Act and Rules framed thereunder. A 
resolution seeking Member’s ratification for the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditor forms part of the Notice 
of 40th Annual General Meeting and the same is recommended for your consideration and ratification. The Cost 
Audit Report for the FY 2024-25, does not contain any qualification(s), reservation(s) or adverse remark(s) which 
calls for any explanation from your Board of Directors.

(iv)	 Internal Auditors

	 In terms of the provisions of Section 138 of the Act read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, as amended 
from time to time, the Board of Directors, based on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, have re-appointed 
M/s. Raju Gupta & Associates, Chartered Accountants, Mumbai (Registration No. 108477W), as the Internal 
Auditor of the Company for the FY 2025-26.

	 The Internal Audit Report for the FY 2024-25, does not contain any qualification(s), reservation(s) or adverse 
remark(s) which calls for any explanation from your Board of Directors.

12.	 Transfer to Investor Education and Protection Fund:

	 Transfer of Equity Shares: Pursuant to the provisions of Section 124(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016 notified by the Ministry 
of Corporate Affairs on 7th September, 2016 and subsequently amended vide notification dated 28th February, 2017, 
all the equity shares of the Company in respect of which dividend amounts have not been paid or claimed by the 
shareholders for 7 (seven) consecutive years or more are required to be transferred to demat account of the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) Authority.

	 Accordingly, 9501 shares of 70 members of your Company were transferred to Demat Account of IEPF Authority 
on 29th March 2025. Your Company had sent individual notice to all the members whose email ids were available 
with Company and has also published the notice in the leading English and Gujarati newspapers. The details of the 
aforesaid members are available on website of your Company i.e. www.bluechiptexindustrieslimited.com
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	 Transfer of Unclaimed/ Unpaid Dividend: Further, pursuant to the provisions of Section 124(5) of the Act, the 
dividend which remained unclaimed/ unpaid for a period of seven years from the date of transfer to unpaid dividend 
account is required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) established by the Central 
Government. As a result, the unclaimed/ unpaid dividend for the year 2016-17 which remained unclaimed and unpaid 
for a period of 7 (seven) years has been transferred by your Company to the IEPF.

	 Your Company has uploaded the details of unclaimed/ unpaid dividend for the FY 2016-17 onwards on its website viz., 
www.bluechiptexindustrieslimited.com and on website of the Ministry of Corporate Affairs viz., www.mca.gov.in and the 
same gets revised / updated from time to time.

	 Further, the unpaid Dividend amount pertaining to the FY 2017-18 will be transferred to IEPF during the FY 2025-26.

13.	 Deposits:

	 The Company has not accepted any deposits covered under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder.

14.	 Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo as per Section 
134 (3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 (3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014:

A. Conservation of Energy:

(i) 	 The steps taken or impact on conservation of energy:

	 Constant efforts in continuing all previous conservation measures and increasing awareness of energy 
management amongst employees have continued which should enable further savings going forward. The 
Company had installed solar plant for energy conservation in March, 2020. Also, Company had installed 
LED lights in place of existing lighting system in March, 2020. Installation of solar plant and LED lights 
helped in reducing the energy bill and creating higher productivity.

(ii) 	 The steps taken for utilizing alternate sources of energy:

	 The Company had installed solar plant for energy conservation in March, 2020. Also, Company had installed 
LED lights in place of existing lighting system in March, 2020.

 (iii) 	 The capital investment on energy conservation equipment:

	 No capital investment has been made during the year under review.

B. 	 Technology absorption:

(i) 	 The efforts made towards technology absorption:

	 The textile business environment is becoming more and more challenging and competitive, thus in current 
scenario, it becomes the key to survival. We follow strategy of Innovation and Sustainability and research is 
being done to keep business predictable, sustainable and profitable and to de-risk our product portfolio.

(ii) 	 The benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product development or import 
substitution:

	 The Company keeps itself abreast of the technical development and innovation in its line of products and 
tries to bring improvements in the product for better yield, quality and cost effectiveness etc. Continuous 
efforts are being made in the areas of quality improvements, waste reduction, process capability and cost 
minimization to specially improve the market acceptance of the product.

(iii) 	 In case of imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned from the beginning 
of the financial year) –

(a) 	 the details of technology imported: Not Applicable

(b) 	 the year of import: Not Applicable

(c) 	 whether the technology been fully absorbed: Not Applicable

(d) 	 if not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has not taken place, and the reasons thereof: Not 
Applicable

(iv) 	 the expenditure incurred on Research and Development – NIL

C. 	 Foreign exchange earnings and Outgo: NIL
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15.	 Material Changes and Commitment, if any, affecting the financial position of the Company from the end of the 
financial year till the date of this report:

	 No material changes and commitments which could affect your Company’s financial position have occurred between 
the end of the FY 2024-25 and to the date of this report.

16.	 Significant and Material Orders passed by the Regulators or Courts:

	 There are no significant and material orders passed by any Regulator/Court that would impact the going concern status 
of your Company and its future operations.

17.	 Details of Subsidiary Company / Associate Company / Joint Ventures:

	 Company does not have any Subsidiary Company or Associate Company or Joint Venture.
18.	 Change in the Nature of Business:

	 There has been no change in the nature of business of the Company during the year ended 31st March, 2025.
19.	 Change in the Capital Structure:

	 There has been no change in the capital structure of the Company during the year ended 31st March, 2025.
20.	 Accounting Treatment:

	 The Company followed the applicable Accounting Standards in the preparation of its Financial Statements.
21.	 Compliance with the applicable Secretarial Standards:

	 The Company has complied with the applicable secretarial standards for the FY 2024-25.
22.	 Adequacy of Internal Financial Controls with reference to the financial statements:

	 The Company has adequate and effective control systems, commensurate with its size and nature of business, to 
ensure that assets are efficiently used and the interest of the Company is safe guarded. Checks and balances are in 
place to determine the accuracy and reliability of accounting data.

23.	 Risk Management Committee:

	 As per Regulation 21 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulation, 2015, the Board of Directors of the top 1000 listed entities needs to constitute a Risk Management 
Committee. As the Company does not falls into the aforesaid category, the Board has not constituted Risk Management 
Committee.

24.	 Particulars of Loans, Guarantees and Investments:

	 Company has not provided any loans or guarantees which are covered under the provisions of Section 186 of the Act. 
The details of investments covered under the provisions of Section 186 of the Act are given in the Notes to the Financial 
Statements forming part of Annual Report.

25.	 Related Party Transactions:

	 All Related Party Transactions entered into during the financial year under review, were on an arm’s length basis, and 
in the ordinary course of business and are in compliance with the applicable provisions of the Act.

	 Prior omnibus approval of the Audit Committee is obtained for the transactions which are repetitive in nature or when 
the need for these transactions cannot be foreseen in advance. Details of transactions with Related Parties as required 
under Section 134(3)(h) of the Act read with Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is annexed herewith 
as “Annexure II” in form AOC-2.

	 The policy on materiality of related party transactions and dealing with related party transactions as approved by the 
Board may be accessed from your Company’s website at www.bluechiptexindustrieslimited.com

	 Attention of Members is also drawn to Note 32 to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025 which 
sets out the related party disclosures as per the Indian Accounting Standard.

26.	 Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR):

	 Your Company has been a firm believer that each and every individual including an artificial person owe something to 
the society at large.

	 For the FY 2024-25, CSR is not applicable to the Company. The Disclosures as per Rule 9 of Companies (Corporate 
Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 is made in prescribed form which is annexed to this Report as “Annexure III”.

	 Details about the CSR Policy adopted and formulated by your Company can be accessed from your Company’s website 
at www.bluechiptexindustrieslimited.com
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27.	 Committees of Board:

I. 	 Nomination and Remuneration Committee:

	 The Nomination and Remuneration Committee (“NRC”) has been revised and re-constituted by the Board in the 
Board Meeting held on 29th May, 2024, in compliance with the requirements of Section 178 of the Act.

	 The NRC consists of following three non-executive Directors:

1. 	 Mrs. Tanya .S. Shah	  – Chairman (Independent Director)

2. 	 Mr. Rohit .P. Bajaj 	 – Member (Independent Director)

3.	  Mr. Siddharth .A. Khemani 	– Member (Non-Executive, Non-Independent Director)

	 Terms of Reference of NRC: The role and terms of reference of the Committee are in line with the provisions of 
Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013.

	 The Committee is empowered to do the following:

a.	 Formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a director 
and recommend to the Board of Directors a policy relating to the remuneration of the directors, key 
managerial personnel and other employees;

b.	 Formulation of criteria for evaluation of performance of Independent Directors and the Board of Directors;

c.	 Identifying persons who are qualified to become Directors and who may be appointed in Senior Management 
in accordance with the criteria laid down, and recommend to the Board of Directors their appointment and 
removal;

d.	 Whether to extend or continue the term of appointment of the Independent Director, on the basis of the 
report of performance evaluation of Independent Directors;

e.	 Recommend to the Board, all remuneration, in whatever form, payable to Senior Management.

	 The Company’s Nomination and Remuneration Policy for Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and 
other employees is annexed herewith as “Annexure V”. Further, the Company has devised a Policy for 
performance evaluation of Independent Directors, Board, Committees and other individual Directors & 
Key Managerial Personnel’s. The Company’s Nomination and Remuneration Policy is directed towards 
rewarding performance based on review of achievements periodically. The Nomination and Remuneration 
Policy is in consonance with the existing industry practice.

II. 	 Audit Committee:

	 The Audit Committee has been revised and re-constituted by the Board in the Board Meeting held on 29th May, 
2024, in compliance with the requirements of Section 177 of the Act. The Audit Committee consists of following 
three Directors with the Chairman being Independent Director.

1. 	 Mr. Abhishek S. Kamdar	  - Chairman (Independent Director)

2. 	 Mr. Rohit .P. Bajaj 	 - Member (Independent Director)

3. 	 Mr. Rahul .A. Khemani - Member (CFO & Director)

	 Terms of Reference of the Audit Committee: The terms of reference of the Audit Committee of your Company 
are in accordance with Section 177 and other applicable provisions of the Act and the Rules framed thereunder, 
which inter alia include the following:

a.	 Recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors of the Company;

b.	 Review and monitor the auditor’s independence and performance, and effectiveness of audit process;

c.	 Examination of the financial statement and limited review / auditors’ report thereon;

d.	 Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the Company with related parties;

e.	 Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;

f.	 Valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company, wherever it is necessary;

g.	 Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems;

h.	 Discussion with Internal Auditors of any significant findings and follow up there on;

i.	 Review the functioning of the Whistle Blower mechanism or Vigil mechanism; etc.
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III. 	 Stakeholders Relationship Committee:

The Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee (“SRC”) has been revised and re-constituted by the Board in the 
Board Meeting held on 29th May, 2024, in compliance with the requirements of Section 178 (5) of the Act. The SRC 
comprises of following four directors with the Chairman being Independent Director:

1. 	 Mr. Abhishek S. Kamdar – Chairman (Independent Director)

2. 	 Mr. Shahin .N. Khemani 	 – Member (Managing Director)

3. 	 Mr. Rahul .A. Khemani 	 – Member (CFO & Director)

4. 	 Mr. Siddharth .A. Khemani 	 – Member (Non-Executive, Non-Independent Director)

The terms of reference of the SRC, inter-alia are as follows:

a.	 Resolving the grievances of the security holders of the Company including complaints related to transfer/ 
transmission of shares, non-receipt of annual report, non-receipt of declared dividends, issue of new/ 
duplicate certificates, General Meetings etc.;

b.	 Review of measures taken for effective exercise of voting rights by shareholders;

c.	 Review of adherence to the service standards adopted by the Company in respect of various services being 
rendered by the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent;

d.	 Review of the various measures and initiatives taken by the Company for reducing the quantum of 
unclaimed dividends and ensuring timely receipt of dividend warrants/annual reports/ statutory notices by 
the shareholders of the Company;

28.	 Whistle Blower Policy / Vigil Mechanism:

	 Your Company has a Vigil Mechanism in place which includes a Whistle Blower Policy for Directors and Employees 
of your Company to provide a mechanism which ensures adequate safeguards to Employees and Directors from any 
victimization on raising of concerns of any violations of legal or regulatory requirements, incorrect or misrepresentation 
of any financial statements and reports etc.

	 The Vigil Mechanism/Whistle Blower Policy of your Company can be accessed from your Company’s website at www.
bluechiptexindustrieslimited.com.

29.	 Disclosure under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 
2013:

a. 	 Your Company has framed ‘Sexual Harassment Policy’ and has constituted an Internal Complaints Committee as 
per the requirement of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 
2013 and the Rules framed thereunder.

	 The following are the details:

Sr. No. Particulars

(a) number of complaints of sexual harassment received in the year NIL
(b) number of complaints disposed off during the year NA
(c) number of cases pending for more than ninety days NA

b. 	 Statement that the Company has complied with the Maternity Benefit Act, 1961

	 The Company declares that it has duly complied with the provisions of the Maternity Benefit Act, 1961. All eligible 
women employees have been extended the statutory benefits prescribed under the Act, including paid maternity 
leave, continuity of salary and service during the leave period, and post-maternity support such as nursing breaks 
and flexible return-to-work options, as applicable. The Company remains committed to fostering an inclusive and 
supportive work environment that upholds the rights and welfare of its women employees in accordance with 
applicable laws.

c. 	 Number of employees as on the closure of the financial year with details of gender
Particulars Male Female

No. of employees 30 3
No. of workers 92 6
Total  122 9
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30.	 Corporate Governance Report:

	 In terms of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 
2015, please note that compliance with the corporate governance provisions as specified in regulations 17, 17A, 18, 19, 
20, 21, 22, 23, 24, 24A, 25, 26, 27 and clauses (b) to (i) and (t) of sub-regulation (2) of regulation 46 and para C , D and 
E of Schedule V shall be applicable to the Company, in respect of a listed entity having Paid Up Equity Share Capital 
exceeding Rupees Ten Crore and Net Worth exceeding Rupees Twenty Five Crore, as on the last day of the previous 
financial year. Since your Company’s Paid Up Equity Share Capital and Net Worth as on FY 2024-25 are exceeding the 
above mentioned figures, the Corporate Governance Report for the FY 2024-25 as required under para C of Schedule 
V is attached.

31.	 Management Discussion And Analysis:

	 Increasing Global Demand for Textiles India is positioned as a leading supplier of textiles globally. By 2025, the industry 
is expected to see significant growth in exports, driven by increasing demand in key markets such as the United States, 
Europe, and the Middle East. India’s textile exports are projected to reach $45 billion by 2025, up from the $38 billion 
mark in 2020. This growth is driven by India’s competitive manufacturing costs, skilled labor force, and the push to 
strengthen its export-friendly policies.

	 As the world moves toward sustainability, the Indian textile industry is embracing eco-friendly manufacturing practices. 
Sustainable textiles, organic fibers, and eco-friendly dyes are expected to become standard by 2025. The rise of 
sustainable brands and an increase in consumer awareness around eco-conscious products are prompting Indian 
manufacturers to adopt green technologies. Moreover, India is focusing on circular economy principles, recycling, and 
waste reduction in textile production.

	 Technological innovations are revolutionizing the Indian textile industry. Automation, AI, and IoT (Internet of Things) are 
streamlining production processes, improving efficiency, and reducing costs. By 2025, we can expect more widespread 
adoption of technologies like smart textiles, digital printing, and automated stitching machines. The implementation 
of data analytics for real-time decision-making will also play a crucial role in optimizing supply chains and improving 
product quality.

	 The Indian government is playing a pivotal role in transforming the textile sector through various schemes such as the 
Production Linked Incentive (PLI) Scheme for Textiles and the National Textile Policy. These initiatives aim to boost 
manufacturing, exports, and job creation. By 2025, the government plans to enhance the competitiveness of the Indian 
textile industry, especially in high-value-added segments like technical textiles and apparel.

	 The Indian textile industry is not just focusing on exports. Domestic demand for textiles is expected to grow at a steady 
pace. With the growing middle class, changing fashion trends, and rising disposable incomes, the demand for both 
traditional and modern textiles will soar. By 2025, the domestic market is expected to contribute significantly to the 
textile industry’s growth.

	 INDIAN ECONOMIC OVERVIEW & OUTLOOK

	 The Textile Market is valued at USD 760.28 billion in 2025 and is projected to reach USD 974.38 billion by 2030, 
advancing at a 5.09% CAGR. Tightening sustainability regulations in Europe, near-shoring strategies such as “China 
+ 1,” and expanding demand for high-performance technical fabrics set the growth tone for the global textile market. 
Polyester recycling lines, the rapid rise of e-commerce brands that want custom designs, and government incentive 
programs in India and Vietnam all reinforce investment momentum. Feedstock cost swings and climate-driven water 
restrictions on cotton create volatility, yet they also hasten the pivot toward recycled synthetics and new fiber blends. 
Overall, competitive advantage now hinges on traceability, low-impact production, and the ability to deliver small runs 
quickly for fast-fashion and direct-to-consumer labels.

	 Direct-to-consumer brands deploy generative AI tools to recommend styles and allow shoppers to tweak fit in real time. 
Global online apparel sales could top USD 1.39 trillion by 2033, growing at 8.7% CAGR. Rental fashion in China is 
expected to hit USD 1.08 billion by 2026, driving the need for abrasion-resistant fabrics that endure many laundering 
cycles. WRAP reports repair services displace 82.2% of new garment purchases, pushing mills to boost fiber strength 
and colorfastness. The intersection of mass customisation and sustainability enlarges profit pools for premium technical 
textiles with verified low environmental impacts.

	 Asia-Pacific dominated the textile market with 53.2% share in 2024, while the Middle East and Africa are set to grow 
fastest at 5.56% CAGR through 2030. China faces rising labor costs and geopolitical tensions that drive supply chain 
diversification toward Vietnam, Pakistan, Indonesia, Bangladesh, and Turkey. These five nations are projected to absorb 
47% of global cotton imports by 2030, while China’s share falls to 24%. India raised its Production Linked Incentive 
budget from INR 45 crore (USD 5.4 million) to INR 1,148 crore (USD 138.3 million) for 2025-26 to support seven new 
mega-parks that target USD 350 billion in industry size by 2030. Japan and South Korea focus on high-value technical 
textiles and advanced materials, while ASEAN countries benefit from “China + 1” strategies as manufacturers seek 
supply chain resilience.
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	 Europe shapes global textile practices through sustainability regulations, with Extended Producer Responsibility schemes 
and Digital Product Passports that influence manufacturing worldwide. Germany strengthens ties with Morocco in 
automotive supply chains, while Turkey’s strategic position enables rapid order fulfillment for European brands requiring 
ultra-short lead times. The UK’s post-Brexit trade agreements may limit access to pan-Euro-Med preferential treatment, 
potentially disadvantaging British textile firms compared to EU competitors. Nordic countries emphasize sustainable 
innovation and circular economy principles, creating premium market segments for environmentally certified products 
that command higher margins despite smaller volumes.

	 The Global Textile Market shows moderate fragmentation with established players leveraging vertical integration 
and technological innovation to maintain competitive advantages amid sustainability pressures and supply chain 
diversification. Technical textiles demonstrate higher consolidation due to specialized knowledge requirements, while 
fashion and apparel segments remain fragmented across numerous regional and global players. Strategic patterns 
emphasize sustainability investments, circular economy integration, and geographic diversification to mitigate regulatory 
compliance costs and supply chain risks that threaten margins across all segments.

	 Industry Information:

	 India’s textiles sector is one of the oldest industries in the Indian economy, dating back to several centuries. The 
industry is extremely varied, with hand-spun and hand-woven textiles sectors at one end of the spectrum, with the 
capital-intensive sophisticated mills sector on the other end. The decentralised power looms/ hosiery and knitting sector 
forms the largest component in the textiles sector. The close linkage of textiles industry to agriculture (for raw materials 
such as cotton) and the ancient culture and traditions of the country in terms of textiles makes it unique in comparison 
to other industries in the country. India’s textiles industry has a capacity to produce a wide variety of products suitable 
for different market segments, both within India and across the world.

	 Opportunities and Threats:

	 The textile market size is expected to see strong growth in the next few years. It will grow to $915.96 billion in 2029 at a 
compound annual growth rate (CAGR) of 7.1%. The growth in the forecast period can be attributed to global population 
growth and urbanization, a rapid growth in ecommerce, rising spend on leisure, increasing retail penetration, increasing 
internet penetration and smartphone usage and growing preference for contactless delivery solutions. Major trends in 
the forecast period include focus on adopting digital textile printing inks, focus on use of non-woven fabrics, focus on 
using organic fibers, focus on sustainable fibers, focus on using blockchain in the manufacturing processes, focus on 
implementing digital platforms in textile supply chain management, focus on collaborating with technology companies to 
design and develop smart fabrics, focus on adopting robotics and automation, focus on investing in artificial intelligence 
and focus on partnerships and collaborations to develop innovative.

	 India’s textile industry faces several fundamental challenges that hinder its growth. Infrastructure and logistics 
remain significant bottlenecks, with inefficiencies delaying supply chain processes. Limited investment in research 
and development restricts innovation and the adoption of new technologies. The workforce, though abundant, lacks 
adequate training, resulting in lower productivity compared to competitors. Fluctuations in raw material prices, coupled 
with high import duties, further impact cost efficiency. Moreover, currency volatility and high interest rates add to the 
financial burden, making exports less competitive globally.

	 Outlook:

	 The Company expects to be on a profitable growth momentum. In the Domestic Market, the overall consumer sentiments 
are positive. The Company is focused on liquidity management through cost reduction initiatives and working capital 
optimization with an aim of becoming a net debt-free Company in next 3 years.

	 Risks and Concerns:

	 The broader trends in the economy are expected to have a direct impact on your Company’s growth prospects as well. 
Inflation is expected to remain elevated for the foreseeable future, driven by war-induced commodity price increases 
and broadening price pressures.

	 In these circumstances, the ability to successfully navigate cost pressures would have a significant bearing on the 
overall performance of your Company. Diminishing purchasing power and demand due to the economic circumstances 
could result in fundamental shifts in consumer behaviour and adversely impact the market for textiles.

	 Risk Management

	 The Company has a comprehensive Risk Management framework for the timely and effective identification, assessment, 
monitoring and mitigation of potential risks that may impact its business. It has robust mitigation strategies to overcome 
adverse situations which may arise on account of foreseeable risks. The key risks and their corresponding mitigation 
measures are depicted below:
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	 The Company operates in diverse markets and is exposed to adverse macroeconomic conditions, country-specific 
changes to the operating, regulatory and political environment, natural disasters, global health emergencies or 
civil unrest that may impact consumer demand, disrupt operations, lead to increased operational costs and impact 
profitability. Geopolitical tensions, supply chain disruptions, higher inflation, monetary tightening and global economic 
slowdown may reduce consumer spending and impact the growth of the Company.

	 Mitigation

	 The Company continually monitors external macroeconomic and regulatory changes and is supported by insights from 
the treasury and strategy teams into macroeconomic trends. Moreover, it is focussed on increasing its geographical 
footprint, e-commerce expansion, and producing innovative products to strengthen its position in the market.

	 The Company’s Financial Performance:

	 The highlights of the Company’s financial performance for the year ended 31st March, 2025 is given at the start of the 
Directors Report.

	 Internal Control and Management Systems:

	 Your company has an adequate internal control system. There is a system of continuous internal audit which aims 
at ensuring effectiveness and efficiency of systems and operations. Your company has the benefit of internal control 
systems which have been developed over the years and which has ensured that all transactions are satisfactorily 
recorded and reported and all assets are protected against loss from unauthorised use or otherwise. The process of 
Internal control and systems, statutory compliance, risk analysis and its management and information technology are 
taken together to provide a meaningful support to the management process. Also continuous efforts are being made to 
strengthen the system.

	 Human Resource and Industrial Relations:

	 The Company believes that Human Resources play a significant role in achieving its business vision. Hence, the 
Company continues to invest on hiring the best talent, developing and retaining the available talent to ensure a 
sustainable talent supply within the organization. The Company provides various opportunities to the employees to 
develop their skills to take up higher responsibilities in the organization. The Company uses various communication 
channels to seek employees’ feedback about the overall working environment and the necessary tools and resources 
they need to perform at their best potential. The Company’s employee strength stood at 131 as on 31st March, 2025.

	 Health, Safety and Security Measures:

	 The Company continues to accord the highest priority to health and safety of its employees and communities it operates 
in. The Company has been fully committed to comply with all applicable laws and regulations and maintains the highest 
standard of Occupational Health and Safety and ensures safer plants by conducting safety audits, risk assessments 
and periodic safety awareness training to employees. We believe in good health of our employees.

	 Cautionary Statement:

	 Readers are cautioned that this discussion and analysis contains forward-looking statements that involve risks and 
uncertainties. The Company undertakes no obligation to publicly update or revise any forward-looking statements, 
whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise. Actual results, performances or achievements, risks 
and opportunities could differ materially from those expressed or implied in these forward-looking statements. Readers 
are cautioned not to place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements as these are relevant at a particular 
point of time & adequate restrain should be applied in their use for any decision making or formation of an opinion.

	 The above discussion and analysis should be read in conjunction with the Company’s financial statements included 
herein and the notes thereto.

32.	 Directors’ Responsibility Statement:

	 In terms of Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, in relation to the Audited Financial Statements of your Company 
for the financial year ended 31st March, 2025, the Board of Directors hereby confirm that:

a)	 in the preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year ended 31st March, 2025, the applicable accounting 
standards read with the requirements set out under Schedule III to the Act have been followed and there are no 
material departures from the same;

b)	 the Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgements and 
estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company 
as at 31st March, 2025 and of the profit and loss of the Company for the year ended on that date;
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c)	 the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in 
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for 
preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d)	 the Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

e)	 the Directors have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and such internal financial 
controls are adequate and were operating effectively and

f)	 the Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and 
such systems are adequate and operating effectively.

33.	 Disclosure on Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016:

	 There are no proceedings initiated / pending against your Company under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016.

34.	 Other Disclosures:

•	 There was no revision of financial statements and Board’s Report of the Company during the year under review.

•	 There was no instance of one-time settlement with any Bank or Financial Institution.

•	 The Company has not issued any shares with differential rights and hence no information as per provisions of 
Section 43(a)(ii) of the Act read with Rule 4(4) of the Companies (Share Capital and Debenture) Rules, 2014 is 
furnished.

•	 The Company has not issued any equity shares under Employees Stock Option Scheme during the year under 
review and hence no information as per provisions of Section 62(1)(b) of the Act read with Rule 12(9) of the 
Companies (Share Capital and Debenture) Rules, 2014 is furnished.

•	 During the year under review, there were no instances of non-exercising of voting rights in respect of shares 
purchased directly by employees under a scheme pursuant to Section 67(3) of the Act read with Rule 16(4) of 
Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014 is furnished.

•	 The Company has not issued any sweat equity shares during the year under review and hence no information 
as per provisions of Section 54(1)(d) of the Act read with Rule 8(13) of the Companies (Share Capital and 
Debenture) Rules, 2014 is furnished.

35.	 Acknowledgement:

	 Your Directors take this opportunity to thank the employees, customers, vendors, investors of the Company and the 
communities in which the Company operates, for their unstinted co-operation and valuable support extended during the 
year.

					     For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
					     For Blue Chip Tex Industries Limited

					     Shahin .N. Khemani		  Rahul .A. Khemani
					     Managing Director 		  CFO & Director
					     DIN: 03296813		   	 DIN: 03290468

Place: Mumbai
Date: 6th August 2025
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“ANNEXURE I”

FORM NO. MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2025

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No. 9 of the Companies  
(Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,
Blue Chip Tex Industries Limited
Plot No. 63-B, Danudyog Sahakari
Sangh Ltd, Village Piparia, Silvassa
Dadra & Nagar Haveli – 396230

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good 
corporate practices by Blue Chip Tex Industries Limited, (hereinafter called “the Company”). Secretarial Audit was 
conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and 
expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained 
by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during 
the conduct of Secretarial Audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the 
financial year ended on 31st March, 2025, complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company 
has proper Board-processes and compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting 
made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company 
for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2025 according to the provisions of:

(i)	 The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

(ii)	 The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;

(iii)	 The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

(iv)	 Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to extent of Foreign Direct 
Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings;

(v)	 The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 
(‘SEBI Act’): -

(a)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 
2011;

(b)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;

(c)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2009 
(Not Applicable During Audit Period);

(d)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase 
Scheme) Guidelines, 1999 (Not Applicable During Audit Period);

(e)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008 (Not 
Applicable During Audit Period);

(f)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registers to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 
1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client (Not Applicable During Audit Period);

(g)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009 (Not Applicable 
During Audit Period) and

(h)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulation, 1998 (Not Applicable During 
Audit Period)
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We have also examined compliance with the applicable regulations/clauses of the following:

(i)	 Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India (SS-1 & SS-2)

(ii)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 
(“SEBI LODR”)

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, 
Standards etc. mentioned above.

We further report that

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive 
Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the 
period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board / Committee Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda 
were sent at least seven days in advance and adequate compliance as required under Companies Act, 2013 and a system 
exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for 
meaningful participation at the meeting.

Decisions taken by Majority of the Board Members and Committee Members are carried through and proper systems are 
devised which facilitates capturing and recording the dissenting member’s views, if any, as part of the minutes. During the 
audit period, all the decisions in the Board Meetings and Committee Meetings were passed with requisite majority

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and 
operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the Audit Period there were no specific events/actions having a major bearing on Company’s 
affairs.

For Pramod .S. Shah & Associates
Practising Company Secretaries

Pramod .S. Shah
Partner
Membership No.: F334
COP No.: 3804
UDIN:

Date: 16th June, 2025
Place: Mumbai
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Annexure I

To,
The Members
Blue Chip Tex Industries Limited
Plot No. 63-B, Danudyog Sahakari
Sangh Ltd, Village Piparia, Silvassa
Dadra & Nagar Haveli – 396230

Our report of event date is to be read along with this letter.

1. 	 Maintenance of Secretarial records is the responsibility of the Management of the Company. Our responsibility is to 
express an opinion on these Secretarial records based on our audit.

2. 	 We have followed the audit practices and process as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the 
correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct 
facts are reflected in Secretarial records. We believe that the process and practices we followed provide a reasonable 
basis for our opinion.

3. 	 We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the Company.

4. 	 Wherever required, we have obtained Management representation about the Compliance of laws, rules and regulations 
and happening of events etc.

5. 	 The compliance of the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards are the 
responsibility of Management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedure on test basis.

6. 	 The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or 
effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For Pramod .S. Shah & Associates
Practising Company Secretaries

Pramod .S. Shah
Partner
Membership No.: F334
COP No.: 3804
UDIN:

Date: 16th June, 2025
Place: Mumbai
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“ANNEXURE II’’

Form AOC-2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2)  
of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the Company with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of 
section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013:

1. 	 Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis: NIL

2. 	 Details of material contracts or arrangements or transactions at arm’s length basis:

` In Lakhs

Sr. 
No.

Name of the 
related party 
and nature of 
relationship1

Nature of 
contracts / 

arrangements / 
transactions

Duration of 
contracts/ 

arrangements/ 
transactions

Salient terms of the 
contracts or arrangements 

or transactions including the 
value, if any

Date(s) of 
approval by 
the Board, if 

any2

Transaction 
Value

1. BSPL* Insurance 
charges paid

One Year Insurance charges paid N.A. 3.31

2. BSPL* Gratuity Re-
imbursement

One Year Gratuity paid N.A. 10.97

3. BSPL* Purchase of raw 
materials & goods

One Year Purchase of raw materials & 
goods at arm’s length price

N.A. 22,717.22

4. BSPL* Purchase of 
packing materials

One Year Purchase of packing materials 
at arm’s length price

N.A. 2.38

5. BSPL* Purchase of 
Services

One Year Purchase of Services at arm’s 
length price

N.A. 8.96

6. BSPL* Purchase of Fixed 
Assets

One Year Purchase of fixed assets at 
arm’s length price

N.A. 0.15

7. BSPL* Sale of goods One Year Sale of goods at arm’s length 
price

N.A. 3,145.32

8. BSPL* Sale of store 
spares

One Year Sale of store spares at arm’s 
length price

N.A. 2.79

9. BSPL* Sale of packing 
materials

One Year Sale of packing materials at 
arm’s length price

N.A. 2.41

10. BSPL* Sale of Scrap One Year Sale of Scrap at arm’s length 
price

N.A. 40.05

11. BSPL* Sale of Plant and 
Machinery

One Time Sale of Plant and Machinery at 
arm’s length price

N.A. 18.96

*BSPL- Beekaylon Synthetics Private Limited (CIN: U17110DN1979PTC005551)

MGT 14 SRN – Not Applicable

Notes:

1. 	 Nature of Relationship – Sister concern where Promoters / Directors having significant control;

2. 	 All Related Party Transactions entered into during the financial year under review, were on an arm’s length basis, and 
in the ordinary course of business and are in compliance with the applicable provisions of the Act.

	 Prior omnibus approval of the Audit Committee is obtained for the transactions which are repetitive in nature or when 
the need for these transactions cannot be foreseen in advance.

	 The Audit Committee and Board of Director’s at their respective Meeting held on 29.05.2024, 07.08.2024, 06.11.2024 
& 11.02.2025 have noted and reviewed the above mentioned transactions.

3. 	 All transactions with BSPL have been disclosed irrespective of whether they material or not. No advance was paid for 
any transaction mentioned above.
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“ANNEXURE III”

ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) ACTIVITIES

1. 	 Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company:

	 Blue Chip Tex Industries Limited has framed a CSR Policy in compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013 and the same is uploaded on the Company’s website. The activities and funding are monitored internally by 
the Board of Directors of the Company. The Company has identified the following fields of operation for spending of 
expenditure towards CSR:

a)	 eradicating hunger, poverty and malnutrition, promoting preventive health care including sanitation and more 
particularly contribution to the Swach Bharat Kosh set-up by the Central Government for the promotion of 
sanitation and making available safe drinking water;

b)	 promoting education, including special education and employment enhancing vocation skills especially among 
children, women, elderly and the differently abled and livelihood enhancement projects;

c)	 promoting gender equality, empowering women, setting up homes and hostels for women and orphans; setting 
up old age homes, day care centers and such other facilities for senior citizens and measures for reducing 
inequalities faced by socially and economically backward groups;

d)	 ensuring environmental sustainability, ecological balance, protection of flora and fauna, animal welfare, 
agroforestry, conservation of natural resources and maintaining quality of soil, air and water including contribution 
to the Clean Ganga Fund set-up by the Central Government for rejuvenation of river Ganga;

e)	 protection of national heritage, art and culture including restoration of buildings and sites of historical importance 
and works of art; setting up public libraries; promotion and development of traditional arts and handicrafts;

f)	 measures for the benefit of armed forces veterans, war widows and their dependents, Central Armed Police 
Forces (CAPF) and Central Para Military Forces (CPMF) veterans, and their dependents including widows;

g)	 training to promote rural sports, nationally recognized sports, paralympic sports and Olympic sports;

h)	 contribution to the Prime Minister’s national Relief Fund or Prime Minister’s Citizen Assistance and Relief in 
Emergency Situations Fund (PM CARES Fund) or any other fund set up by the Central Government for socio-
economic development and relief and welfare of the Scheduled Castes, the Scheduled Tribes, other backward 
classes, minorities and women;

i)	 Contribution to incubators or research and development projects in the field of science, technology, engineering 
and medicine, funded by the Central Government or State Government or Public Sector Undertaking or any 
agency of the Central Government or State Government; and

j)	 Contributions to public funded Universities; Indian Institute of Technology (IITs); national Laboratories and 
autonomous bodies established under Department of Atomic Energy (DAE); Department of Biotechnology (DBT); 
Department of Science and Technology (DST); Department of Pharmaceuticals; Ministry of Ayurveda, Yoga and 
naturopathy, Unani, Siddha and Homoeopathy (AYUSH); Ministry of Electronics and Information Technology and 
other bodies, namely Defense Research and Development Organisation (DRDO); Indian Council of Agricultural 
Research (ICAR); Indian Council of Medical Research (ICMR) and Council of Scientific and Industrial Research 
(CSIR), engaged in conducting research in science, technology, engineering and medicine aimed at promoting 
Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs).;

k)	 rural development projects;

l)	 slum area development;

m)	 disaster management, including relief, rehabilitation and reconstruction activities;

n)	 such other projects as may be specified by the Central Government from time to time

2. 	 Composition of CSR Committee:

	 Pursuant to the provision of section 135 (9) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors at its Meeting held on 
4th August, 2021 dissolved Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee with immediate effect and adopted new 
CSR Policy.

3. 	 CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by the board are disclosed on the website of the Company: www.
bluechiptexindustrieslimited.com

4. 	 Provide the details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of the 
Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable (attach the report): Not Applicable
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5. 	 Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the Companies (Corporate Social 
responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for set off for the financial year, if any: Not Applicable

6. 	 Average net profit of the Company as per section 135(5) (`in Lakhs): 273.33

7.      (a) 	 Two percent of average net profit of the Company as per section 135(5) (` in Lakhs): 5.47

(b) 	 Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial years: NIL

(c) 	 Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any: NIL

(d) 	 Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b-7c) (` in Lakhs): NIL

8.      (a) 	 CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:

` In Lakhs
Total 

amount 
spent 
for the 

financial 
year

Amount Unspent
Total Amount transferred 
to Unspent CSR Account 

as per section 135(6)

Amount transferred to any fund specified under Schedule VII 
as per second proviso to section 135(5)

Amount Date of transfer Name of the fund Amount Date of 
transfer

NIL NIL - NIL NIL NIL

(b) 	 Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year: NIL

(c) 	 Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year:

` In Lakhs

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
Sr.
no

Name 
of the 

project

Item from 
the list of 

activities in 
schedule VII 

to the Act

Local 
Area 
(Yes / 
No)

Location of the 
project

Amount 
spent 
for the 
project

Mode of 
Implementation 

– Direct  
(Yes / No)

Mode of implementation 
- Through implementing 

agency
State District Name CSR 

Registration no.
1 - - - - - - - - -

(d) 	 Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: NIL

(e) 	 Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: Not Applicable

(f) 	 Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e) (` In Lakhs): NIL

(g) 	 Excess amount for set off, if any (` In Lakhs): NIL

9.      (a) 	 Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years:

` In Lakhs
Sr.
no

Preceding 
Financial Year

Amount 
transferred to 
Unspent CSR 

Account under 
section 135 (6)

Amount spent 
in the reporting 
Financial Year

Amount transferred to any fund 
specified under Schedule VII as per 

section 135(6), if any

Amount 
remaining to 
be spent in 
succeeding 

financial 
years

Name of the 
fund

Amount Date of 
transfer

1 2024-25 NIL NIL NA NIL NA NIL
2 2023-24 NIL NIL NA NIL NA NIL
3 2022-23 NIL 9.20 PMCARES * 9.20 27/09/2023 NIL

Total NIL NIL 9.20 NIL

* Prime Minister’s Citizen Assistance and Relief in Emergency Situations Fund

(b) 	 Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding financial year(s): Not 
Applicable
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10. 	 In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so created or acquired through 
CSR spent in the financial year: Not Applicable

11. 	 Specify the reason(s), if the Company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per section 135(5): 
Not Applicable

					     For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
					     For Blue Chip Tex Industries Limited

					     Shahin .N. Khemani		  Rahul .A. Khemani
					     Managing Director 		  CFO & Director
					     DIN: 03296813		   	 DIN: 03290468

Place: Mumbai
Date: 6th August 2025
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“ANNEXURE IV’’

PART –A
Details pertaining to Remuneration as required u/s 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 (1) of the 

Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

1.	 The ratio of remuneration of each Director to the Median Remuneration of the employees (“MRE”) of the Company 
for the FY 2024-25 and the percentage (%) increase in remuneration of each Director and Key Managerial Personnel 
(“KMP”) for the same period are under:

` In Lakhs

Name of Director / KMP 
and Designation

Remuneration of Director/ 
KMP for the Financial Year 

2024-25
(1)

% increase in 
Remuneration in the 

Financial Year 2024-25
(2)

Ratio of Remuneration
of each Director / KMP

to MRE
(3 = (1) / MRE)

MANAGING DIRECTOR:

Mr. Shahin .N. Khemani 36.00 NIL 12.54

DIRECTOR:

Mr. Rahul .A. Khemani 36.00 NIL 12.54

NON-EXECUTIVE, NON INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR:

Mr. Siddharth .A. Khemani* Not Applicable

NON-EXECUTIVE INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR:

Mr. Rohit .P. Bajaj* Not Applicable

Mr. Abhishek .S. Kamdar*

Ms. Tanya Singh*

KMP:

Mr. Rahul .A. Khemani- CFO 0.00 0.00 0.00

Mrs. Meena Jain - Company 
Secretary (till 31st October 
2024)

5.29 3.8% 1.08

Ms. Binita Gosalia - 
Company Secretary (w.e.f. 
4th November 2024)

3.51 0.00% 0.51

* None of the Directors received any remuneration except sitting fees.

2.	 In the financial year, there was decrease of 0.43% in the median remuneration of employees;

3.	 There were 133 permanent Employees (Excluding Directors & KMP) on the rolls of the Company as on 31st March, 
2025;

4.	 The Company affirms that the remuneration is as per the Remuneration Policy of the Company.
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PART - B

Information as required pursuant to Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 
Personnel) Rules, 2014

1.	 Top 10 employees (Excluding Directors & Key Managerial Personnel) in terms of Remuneration drawn:

` In Lakhs

Sr.
no Name and Age Designation Remuneration

% of Equity 
holding 
in the 

Company

Qualification & 
Experience in 

years

Date of 
Commencement of 

Employment

Last 
Employment 

held

1 N Shangameshwaran 
(58)

GM- Sales & 
Marketing 17.95 NIL

B.Com & 
PGD- Marketing 
Management 35 

years

01.11.2017

AYM Syntex Ltd

2 Niraj Shivshankar 
Kaushik (55)

Senior 
Manager – 
Production

11.02 NIL B.A.
01.07.2023 Beekaylon 

Synthetics Pvt 
Ltd

3 Gaurang Das (56) Manager – 
Production 10.22 NIL

B.com
11 years

01.10.2012
Not Applicable

4 Binita Gosalia (38) Company 
Secretary 9.60 NIL

B.com, CS,      LLB 
(Gen)

11 years

04.11.2024 Visen Industries 
Limited

5 Pramod .C. Shukla 
(57)

Manager – 
Production 9.36 NIL MA

25 years
01.07.2011 Alok Industries

6 Tasneem Rangel (48)
Senior 
Associate - 
Sales

6.76 NIL M.Com 
20 years

01.07.2017
Allana Sons

7 Rajanikant .D. Dubey 
(37)

Accounts 
Executive 6.62 NIL M.com 13 years 10.12.2019 Bacardi India 

Pvt. Ltd.

8 Mangesh Shankar 
Gore (45)

Assistant 
Manager 6.34 NIL 12th Pass 

22 years
01.11.2008 Alok Industries 

Limited

9 Manish Kumar (41) Export 
Executive 6.04 NIL

B SC   PGDM 
International 

Business15 Years

16.12.2019 Satkamal Export 
Pvt Ltd

10 Somai Prasad 
Gautam (57)

Assistant 
Manager - 
Mechanical

5.76 NIL 12th Pass 
35 years

01.02.2019 Alok Industries 
Limited

2.	 Employees employed throughout the year and were in receipt of remuneration aggregating to not less than  01.02 
Crore per annum: Not Applicable;

3.	 Employees employed for part of the year and were in receipt of remuneration aggregating to not less than 08.50 Lakhs 
per month: Not Applicable;

4.	 Nature of employment is permanent and terminable by Notice on either side;

5.	 None of the employees mentioned above is related to any Director or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company;

6.	 None of the employee is drawing remuneration more than the remuneration drawn by managing director/ whole time 
director and is holding by themselves or along with their spouse and dependent children, two percent or more of the 
equity shares of the Company;

7.	 Terms and conditions of employment are as per Company’s Rules.
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“ANNEXURE V’’

 NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY

1.	 Introduction:

	 The Nomination & Remuneration Policy (“Policy”) of Blue Chip Tex Industries Limited (the “Company”) is formulated 
under the requirements of applicable laws, including the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as amended (“Listing Regulations”).

	 The Policy is intended to set out criteria to pay equitable remuneration to the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel 
(KMP), senior management (as defined below) and other employees of the Company and to harmonise the aspirations 
of human resources with the goals of the Company.

	 The Board of Directors of the Company constituted the “Nomination and Remuneration Committee” at its Meeting held 
on 7th November 2014. This is in line with the requirements under the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”). This Policy and the 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee Charter are integral to the functioning of the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee and are to be read together.

	 The Board has authority to reconstitute this Committee from time to time.

2.	 Objective and Purpose:

	 The objectives and purpose of this Policy are:

2.1. 	 To recommend policy relating to the remuneration of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) and Senior 
Management to the Board of Directors of the Company (“Board”)

2.1. 	 To ensure that the level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate 
the working potential of all the Directors and KMP of the Company;

2.2. 	 To ascertain that the relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance 
benchmarks;

2.3 	 To ensure that the remuneration to Directors and KMP of the Company involves a balance between fixed and 
incentive pay reflecting short and long-term performance objectives appropriate to the working of the Company 
and its goals;

2.4 	 To lay down criteria with regard to identifying persons who are qualified to become Directors (Executive/Non-
executive/Independent) and persons who may be appointed in Key Managerial positions and to determine their 
remuneration;

2.5 	 To determine remuneration based on the Company’s size and financial position and trends and practices on 
remuneration prevailing in peer companies, in the industry;

2.6 	 To carry out evaluation of the performance of Directors, its committees as well as KMP and to provide for reward(s) 
linked directly to their effort, performance, dedication and achievement relating to the Company’s operations and

2.7 	 To lay down criteria for appointment, removal of Directors and KMP and evaluation of their performance.

3.	 Definitions:

a.	 ‘Act’ means the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules framed there under, as amended from time to time.

b.	 ‘Board’ means Board of Directors of the Company.

c.	 ‘Committee’ means Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company as constituted or Re-constituted by 
the Board.

d.	 ‘Company’ means Blue Chip Tex Industries Limited

e.	 ‘Directors’ mean Directors of the Company;

f.	 ‘Policy’ means “Nomination and Remuneration Policy.”

g.	 Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) means-

i) 	 the Managing Director or Chief Executive Officer or manager

ii) 	 Whole-time Director

iii) 	 the Company Secretary;

iv) 	 the Chief Financial Officer; and
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v) 	 Any other person as defined under the Companies Act, 2013 from time to time.

vi) 	 Senior Management means officers/personnel of the Company who are members of its core management 
team. The core management team includes Chief Executive Officer, Managing Director, Whole-time Director, 
Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary.

	 Unless the context otherwise requires, words and expressions used in this Policy and not defined herein but 
defined in the Companies Act, 2013 and Listing Regulations as may be amended from time to time shall have the 
meaning respectively assigned to them therein.

4.	 General:

	 This Policy is divided in three parts:

	 Part – A covers the matters to be dealt with and recommended by the Committee to the Board;

	 Part – B covers the appointment and removal of Directors, KMP and Senior Management; and

	 Part – C covers remuneration for Directors, KMP and Senior Management

Part – A: Matters to be dealt with, perused and recommended to the Board by the  
Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The following matters shall be dealt with by the Committee:

(a) 	 Size and composition of the Board: Periodically reviewing the size and composition of the Board to have an appropriate 
mix of executive and independent Directors to maintain its independence and separate its functions of governance and 
management and to ensure that it is structured to make appropriate decisions, with a variety of perspectives and skills, 
in the best interests of the Company.

(b) 	 Directors: Formulate the criteria determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a Director and 
recommend candidates to the Board when circumstances warrant the appointment of a new Director, having regard to 
qualifications, integrity, expertise and experience for the position.

(c) 	 Evaluation of performance:

i.	 Make recommendations to the Board on appropriate performance criteria for the Directors.

ii.	 Formulate the criteria and framework for evaluation of performance of every Director on the Board of the 
Company.

iii.	 Identify any education programs for the Board to ensure that Non-Executive Directors are provided with 
adequate information regarding the business, the industry and their legal responsibilities and duties.

(d) 	 Remuneration framework and policies: The Committee is responsible for reviewing and making recommendations 
to the Board on:

i.	 Remuneration of executive Directors to be presented for shareholders’ approval including severance, if any.

ii.	 Individual and total remuneration of non-executive Directors and the chairperson (if nonexecutive), including any 
additional fees payable for membership of Board committees.

iii.	 To consider and determine the Remuneration Policy, based on the performance and also bearing in mind that 
the remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate members of the Board and Key 
Managerial Personnel and such other factors as the Committee shall deem appropriate.

PART – B: Policy for appointment and removal of Directors, KMP and Senior Management

(a) 	 Appointment criteria and qualifications:

i.	 The Committee shall ascertain the integrity, qualification, expertise and experience of the person identified for 
appointment as Director, KMP or Senior Management and recommend to the Board his/her appointment. The 
Committee has discretion to decide whether qualification, expertise and experience possessed by a person is 
sufficient / satisfactory for the position.

ii.	 A person to be appointed as Director, KMP or Senior Management should possess adequate qualification, 
expertise and experience for the position he / she is considered for.

iii.	 A person, to be appointed as Director, should possess impeccable reputation for integrity, reasonable expertise 
and insights in sectors / areas relevant to the Company, ability to contribute to the Company’s growth and 
complementary skills in relation to the other Board members.



Blue Chip Tex Industries Limited

35

iv.	 The Company shall not appoint or continue the employment of any person as Managing Director / Whole-
Time Director or Manager who has attained the age of seventy years and shall not appoint or continue the 
employment of Independent Director/Non-Executive Director who has attained the age of seventy-five years. 
Provided that the term of the person holding this position may be extended at the discretion of the committee 
beyond the age of seventy years/seventy-five years with the approval of shareholders by passing a special 
resolution based on the explanatory statement annexed to the notice for such motion indicating the justification 
for extension of appointment beyond seventy years/seventy-five years as the case may be.

v.	 A whole-time KMP of the Company shall not hold office in more than one Company except in its subsidiary 
Company at the same time. However, a whole-time KMP can be appointed as a Director in any Company, with 
the permission of the Board of Directors of the Company.

(b) 	 Term / Tenure:

i.	 Managing Director / Whole-time Director / Manager: The Company shall appoint or re-appoint any person 
as its Managing Director, Whole-Time Director or Manager for a term not exceeding five years at a time. No re-
appointment shall be made earlier than one year before the expiry of term.

ii.	 Independent Director: An Independent Director shall hold office for a term up to five consecutive years on the 
Board of the Company and will be eligible for re-appointment on passing of a special resolution by the Company 
and disclosure of such appointment in the Board’s report.

	 No Independent Director shall hold office for more than two consecutive terms, but such Independent Director shall 
be eligible for appointment after expiry of three years of ceasing to become an Independent Director. Provided that 
an Independent Director shall not, during the said period of three years, be appointed in or be associated with the 
Company in any other capacity, either directly or indirectly. At the time of appointment of Independent Director, it 
should be ensured that number of Boards on which such Independent Director serves, is restricted to applicable 
regulations in force

(c) 	 Removal:

	 Due to reasons for any disqualification mentioned in the Companies Act, 2013, rules made thereunder or under any 
other applicable Act, rules and regulations, the Committee may recommend, to the Board with reasons recorded in 
writing, removal of a Director, KMP or Senior Management subject to the provisions and compliance of the said Act, 
rules and regulations.

(d) 	 Retirement:

	 The Directors, KMP and Senior Management shall retire as per the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 
and the prevailing policy of the Company. The Board will have the discretion to retain the Directors, KMP and Senior 
Management in the same position / remuneration or otherwise, even after attaining the retirement age, for the benefit 
of the Company.

PART – C: Policy relating to the remuneration for Directors, KMP and Senior Management

(a) 	 General:

i.	 The remuneration / compensation / commission etc. to be paid to Directors will be determined by the Committee 
and recommended to the Board for approval.

ii.	 The remuneration and commission to be paid to the Managing Director/Whole-time Director shall be in 
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, and the rules made thereunder.

iii.	 Increments to the existing remuneration / compensation structure may be recommended by the Committee to 
the Board which should be within the limits approved by the Shareholders.

iv.	 Where any insurance is taken by the Company on behalf of its Directors, KMP and Senior Management for 
indemnifying them against any liability, the premium paid on such insurance shall not be treated as part of the 
remuneration payable to any such personnel. Provided that if such person is proved to be guilty, the premium 
paid on such insurance shall be treated as part of the remuneration.

(b) 	 Remuneration to Directors, KMP and Senior Management:

	 The Committee shall ensure that the Remuneration payable to Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior 
Management shall be paid after complying with the provisions of Section 197 and Schedule V and such other applicable 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.
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(c) 	 Minimum remuneration to Whole-time Directors:

	 If, in any financial year, the Company has no profits or its profits are inadequate, the Company shall pay remuneration 
to its Whole-time Directors in accordance with the provisions of Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013.

(d) 	 Remuneration to Non-Executive / Independent Directors:

	 Non- Executive / Independent Director may receive remuneration by way of sitting fees for attending Meetings of 
Board or Committee thereof. Provided that amount of fees shall not exceed ` One Lakh per Meeting of the Board and 
Committee or such amount as may be prescribed by the Central Government from time to time.

5.	 Members of the Committee & its Meetings:

a.	 Members of the Committee shall be appointed by the Board with a minimum of three Non-Executive Directors 
out of which not less than one-half shall be Independent Director.

b.	 The Chairman of the Committee may be elected by Board or be elected by members of the Committee amongst 
themselves who shall be an Independent Director. In the absence of the Committee’s Chairman, the remaining 
members present shall elect one of themselves to chair the Meeting.

c.	 Only members of the Committee have the right to attend and vote at the Committee Meetings and any other 
person required to attend the Meeting will have no right to vote.

d.	 The Chairman of the Committee or in his absence, any other member of the Committee authorised by him in 
this behalf shall attend the general Meetings of the Company.

e.	 The Committee shall meet at such times so as to enable it to carry out its powers, functions, roles & 
responsibilities

6.	 Minutes of Committee Meetings:

	 Proceedings of all the Meetings are recorded and signed by the Chairman of the said Meeting or by the Chairman of 
the next succeeding Meeting. Minutes of the Committee Meeting are tabled at the Meeting of the Board and entered in 
the Minutes binder.

7.	 Policy Review:

a.	 This Policy is framed based on the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules thereunder and the 
requirements of Listing Regulations with the Stock Exchanges.

b.	 In case of any subsequent changes in the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 or any other regulations which 
makes any of the provisions in the policy inconsistent with the Act or regulations, then the provisions of the Act 
or regulations would prevail over the policy and the provisions in the policy would be modified in due course to 
make it consistent with law.

c.	 This policy shall be reviewed by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee as and when any changes are to 
be incorporated in the policy due to change in regulations or as may be felt appropriate by the Committee. Any 
changes or modification to the policy as recommended by the Committee would be placed before the Board of 
Directors for their approval.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To The Members of Blue Chip Tex Industries Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion
We have audited the accompanying Financial Statements of Blue Chip Tex Industries Limited (“the Company”), which 
comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, the Statement of profit and loss(Including Other Comprehensive Income), 
Statement of changes in equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, 
including a summary of Material accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “Financial 
Statements”).
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid financial 
statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true 
and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the 
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally 
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025, and its Loss including Other Comprehensive 
Income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.
Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit of Financial Statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the 
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of 
Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our 
audit of the Financial Statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made there under, and we have fulfilled our 
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit 
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on financial statements.
Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the Financial 
Statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the Financial Statements as a 
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
We have determined that there are no key audit matters to communicate in our report.
Other Information
The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information 
comprises the information included in the Annual Report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditors’ 
report thereon. The aforesaid other information is expected to be made available to us after the date of this report.
Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance 
conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, 
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in 
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
We have been informed that other information will be adopted by the Board of Directors at a later date and we will report, if 
other information so adopted is materially inconsistent with the financial statements.
Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements
The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the 
preparation of these Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, 
changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in 
India, including the Indian Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes 
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the 
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting 
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance 
of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Financial Statements that give a true and fair view 
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the Financial Statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as 
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting 
unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative 
but to do so.
The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Statements as a whole are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance 
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing will 
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users 
taken on the basis of these Financial Statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 
scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:
• 	 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error, design 

and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our opinion.

	 The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud 
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

 • 	 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate 
in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013 as amended, we are also responsible for 
expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the 
operating effectiveness of such controls.

• 	 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related 
disclosures made by management.

• 	 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the 
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant 
doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we 
are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the Financial Statements or, if such 
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the 
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a 
going concern.

•	 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Financial Statements, including the disclosures, and 
whether the Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair 
presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Financial Statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes it probable 
that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the Financial Statements may be influenced. We consider 
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our 
work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.
We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the 
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements 
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought 
to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most 
significance in the audit of the Financial Statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We 
describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, 
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse 
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1.	 As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central Government of India 

in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified 
in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2.	 As required by Section 197(16) of the Act, we report that the company has paid remuneration to its directors during the 
year in accordance with the provisions of the limits laid down under Section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act.

3.	 As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit, we report that:
(a)	 We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief 

were necessary for the purposes of our audit.
(b)	 In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears 

from our examination of those books.
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(c)	 The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Statement of Other Comprehensive income, the 
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the 
books of account.

(d)	 In our opinion, the aforesaid Financial Statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards specified under 
Section 133 of the Act.

(e)	 On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2025 taken on record 
by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2025 from being appointed as a 
director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

(f)	 With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the 
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”.

(g)	 With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and 
according to the explanations given to us:
i.	 The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigation on its financial position in its Financial 

Statements as referred to in Note 33 to the Financial Statements.
ii.	 The Company did not have any long term contracts including derivatives contracts for which there were any 

material foreseeable losses.
iii.	 During the year, there has been delay in transferring the unpaid dividend amount and the same has been 

deposited before 31st March 2025 to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.
                  iv.      a) 	 The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have 

been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other 
sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other persons or entities, including foreign 
entities (Intermediaries), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the 
intermediary Shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified 
in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any 
guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

b) 	 The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have been 
received by the Company from any persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”),with 
the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or 
indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of 
the Funding Party( Ultimate Beneficiaries),or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the 
Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

c) 	 Based on such audit procedures that were considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, 
nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (a) 
and (b) contain any material misstatement.

         v.      a)	 In respect of the dividend declared during the year and paid by the Company, the provisions of Section 123 
of the Act were complied with.

b)	 The Board of Directors of the Company have not yet recommended dividend for the year.
vi.	 Based on our examination, which included test checks carried out on software’s application level and review of 

information and explanations given to us, the company has used an accounting software for maintaining its books 
of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility at application level and the same has 
operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the accounting software. Further, during the 
course of our audit, we did not come across any instances of the audit trail feature being tampered with and the 
audit trail has been preserved by the Company as per the statutory requirements for record retention.

For D K P & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registration No. 126305W

Pooja Jain
Partner

Membership No. 185563
UDIN: 25185563BMOYAY2000

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 21, 2025
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“ANNEXURE A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF BLUE CHIP 
TEX INDUSTRIES LIMITED

(Referred to in Paragraph 1 under the heading of “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” section of 
our report of even date)

i.	 (a) 	 In respect of Property, Plant and Equipment

•	 The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and 
situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

•	 The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

(b) 	 As explained to us, all the Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified during the year by the 
management in a phased periodical manner, which in our opinion is reasonable, having regard to the size of the 
Company and nature of its assets. No material discrepancies were noticed on such physical verification.

(c) 	 According to the information and explanations given to us, the records examined by us and based on the 
examination of the conveyance deeds provided to us, we report that the title deeds, comprising all the immovable 
properties of land and buildings which are freehold, are held in the name of the Company as at the balance sheet 
date. In respect of immovable properties of land and building that have been taken on lease, the lease agreement 
is in the name of the Company.

(d)	 According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examinations of the records of the 
Company, the Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment or intangible assets during the 
year ended March 31, 2025.

(e) 	 According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the 
Company, there are no proceeding initiated during the year or are pending against the Company as at March 31, 
2025 for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 and 
rules made there under.

ii.      (a)	 As explained to us, the inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year and no 
discrepancies of 10% or more in aggregate for each class of inventory were noticed in respect of such physical 
verification. In our opinion, the frequency of verification by the management is reasonable and the coverage and 
procedure for such verification is appropriate.

(b) 	 As disclosed in Note 37 [4] to the Financial Statements, the Company has been sanctioned working capital limits 
in excess of Rs.5 crores in aggregate from bank during the year on the basis of security of current assets of the 
Company. However, Company is not required to submit the quarterly statements to Bank.

iii.	 According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records, during the 
year, the Company has not made any investments, provided guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances 
in nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in 
the register maintained under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013.

	 Hence, reporting under clauses 3(iii)(a) to 3(iii)(f) of the Order is not applicable.

iv.	 According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any loans, or provided 
any guarantees or security to directors or to any other person in whom the directors is interested. In respect of the 
investments made by the Company, provision of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 have been complied with.

v.	 According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has neither accepted any deposits from the 
public nor accepted any amounts which are deemed to be deposits within the meaning of provisions of sections 73 to 
76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and the rules framed thereunder. Hence, reporting under clause 3(v) of 
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

vi.	 We have broadly reviewed the cost records maintained by the Company pursuant to the Companies (Cost Records and 
Audit) Rules, 2014 prescribed by the Central Government under Section 148(1) of the Act and are of the opinion that, 
prima facie, the prescribed accounts and cost records have been maintained. We have, however, not made a detailed 
examination of the cost records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or complete.

vii.	 In respect of Statutory dues:

a.	 According to the records of the Company, undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees’ 
state insurance, income tax, sales tax, Goods and Service Tax, service tax, duty of Customs, duty of excise, 
value added tax, Cess and any other statutory dues have been generally regularly deposited with appropriate 
authorities. According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect 
of the aforesaid dues, were outstanding as at March 31, 2025 for a period of more than six months from the date 
they becoming payable.
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b.	 According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of provident fund, employees’ state 
insurance, income tax, sales tax, Goods and Service tax, service tax, duty of Customs, duty of excise, value 
added tax, Cess and any others statutory dues which have not been deposited on account of any dispute as on 
March 31, 2025.

viii.	 According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the 
Company, there were no transaction relating to previously unrecorded income that were surrendered or disclosed as 
income in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 during the year.

ix.	 According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our audit procedures, and in our opinion:

(a)	 The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon 
to any lender during the year.

(b)	 The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or 
government authority.

(c)	 The Company has not raised any term loans during the year and hence reporting under clause 3(ix)(c) of the Order 
is not applicable.

(d)	 On an overall examination of the balance sheet of the Company, we are of the opinion that funds raised on short 
term basis have not been utilised for long term purposes.

(e)	 & (f) The Company did not have any subsidiaries, joint ventures or associates during the year ended March 31, 
2025. Hence reporting under clause 3(ix)(e) and (f) is not applicable.

x.      (a)		 Based on our audit procedures and examination of records of the Company, the Company has not raised any 
moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) during the year. Hence, 
reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b)	 According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of 
the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or convertible 
debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible) during the year. Hence, reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the 
Order is not applicable to the Company.

xi.	  (a)In our opinion, based on the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of the 
Financial Statements and as per information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or no material 
fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

(b)	 According to information and explanations given to us, no report under sub section (12) of section 143 of the Companies 
Act,2013 has been filed, during the year, by cost auditor / secretarial auditor or by us in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under 
Rule13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,2014 with the Central Government during the year.

(c)	 As represented by the Management to us, there are no whistle blower complaints received by the Company during the 
year.

xii.	 According to information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company as per the provisions of the 
Companies Act 2013. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xii) (a), (b) and (c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xiii.	 In our opinion and according to information and explanations provided by the management, transactions with related 
parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Companies Act 2013, where applicable, and the details 
of the related parties transactions have been disclosed in the note to the Financial Statements, as required by the 
applicable accounting standards.

xiv.   (a)	 Based on the information and explanations provided to us and our audit procedures, in our opinion, the Company 
has an internal audit system commensurate with size and nature of its business.

(b)	 We have considered the internal audit reports issued to the Company during the year, for the period under audit.

xv.	 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during the year, the Company has not 
entered into any non-cash transactions with the directors or persons connected with its directors and covered under 
section 192 of the Companies Act,2013 and hence reporting under clause 3 (xv) of the Order is not applicable to the 
Company.

xvi.   (a) 	 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not required to be 
registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and hence reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a) 
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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(b) 	 In our opinion, to the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 
Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities during the year under 
review and hence reporting requirement under clause 3(xvi) (b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(c) 	 In our opinion, to the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 
Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by Reserve Bank of India 
and hence, reporting requirements under clause 3(xvi) (c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d) 	 As represented by the management, the Group does not have any Core Investment Company (CIC) as part of 
the Group as per the definition of Group contained in the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 
2016.

xvii.	 The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current year and in the immediately preceding financial year.

xviii.	There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year.

xix.	 According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected 
dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial 
statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our examination of the 
evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material 
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities 
existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. 
We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our 
reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance 
that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company 
as and when they fall due.

xx.   (a) 	 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not have any 
unspent amount which is required to be transferred to the fund specified in Schedule VII of the Act, in compliance 
with the second proviso to sub section (5) of section 135 of the Act.

(b)	 The provision of CSR under the section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to Company for the 
year ended March 31, 2025.

xxi.	 The Company does not have any investment in subsidiary or associates or joint venture Companies and accordingly 
preparation of consolidated financial statements is not applicable to the company and hence reporting under clause 3 
(xxi) of the Order is not applicable.

For D K P & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No. 126305W

Pooja Jain
Partner
Membership No. 185563
UDIN: 25185563BMOYAY2000

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 21, 2025
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ANNEXURE “B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTSOF BLUE CHIP 
TEX INDUSTRIES LIMITED

(Referred to in paragraph 3 (f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ of our report of even 
date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 
of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”).

We have audited the Internal Financial Control with reference to Financial Statements BLUE CHIP TEX INDUSTRIES 
LIMITED (“the company”) as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the Financial Statements of the Company for 
the year then ended.

Management Responsibility for the Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the 
internal control with reference to Financial Statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 
(the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”). These responsibilities include 
the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for 
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of 
its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, 
and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to Financial 
Statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note issued by ICAI and the 
Standards on auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial 
controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform 
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to Financial 
Statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls 
system with reference to Financial Statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls 
with reference to Financial Statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to 
Financial Statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating 
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, 
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on 
the Company’s internal financial controls system with reference to Financial Statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control with reference to Financial Statements is a process designed to provide reasonable 
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of Financial Statements for external purposes in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control with reference to Financial 
Statements includes

those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly 
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of Financial Statements 
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being 
made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable 
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets 
that could have a material effect on the Financial Statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to Financial Statements, including the possibility 
of collusion or improper management override of controls,

material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal 
financial controls with reference to Financial Statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial 
control with reference to Financial Statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree 
of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.



Annual Report 2024-25

44

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company has, in all 
material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system with reference to Financial Statements and such internal 
financial controls were operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal financial controls with reference to 
Financial Statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated 
in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI.

For D K P & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No. 126305W

Pooja Jain
Partner
Membership No. 185563
UDIN: 25185563BMOYAY2000

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 21, 2025
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Balance Sheet as at  31st March, 2025 					      ` In Lakhs

Particulars Note No. As at
31st March, 2025

As at
31st March, 2024

ASSETS
Non-Currrent Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment 1  1,664.28  1,905.28 
Other Intangible Assets 2  0.13  0.23 
Financial Assets

Investments 3  41.95  41.95 
Other Financial Assets 4  1.43  51.65 

5  3.09  3.29 
Total Non-Current Assets  1,710.88  2,002.40 
Currrent Assets
 Inventories 6  1,137.13  1,372.11 
 Financial assets

Trade Receivables 7  556.64  669.47 
Cash and cash equivalents 8a  7.75  16.40 
Bank Balances other than cash and cash equivalent 8b  41.56  29.10 
Other financial assets 9  17.44  20.96 
Current tax assets (net of provision) 10  26.32  29.88 

Other current assets 11  47.03  22.05 
Total Current Assets  1,833.87  2,159.97 
TOTAL ASSETS  3,544.75  4,162.37 
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity

Equity Share Capital 12  197.55  197.55 
Other Equity 13  2,454.71  2,577.78 

Total Equity  2,652.26  2,775.33 
Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities

Borrowings 14  160.40  208.40 
Provisions 15  17.46  18.27 
Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 16  132.25  156.05 
Total Non-Current Liabilities  310.11  382.72 
Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities

Borrowings 17  -    234.85 
Trade Payables 18
a) Outstanding Dues of Micro and Small Enterprises  154.07  176.06 
b) Outstanding dues of creditors other than Micro and Small 

Enterprise
 333.29  447.68 

Other Current Financial Liabilities 19  45.97  45.79 
Other Current Liabilities 20  44.70  80.39 
Provisions 21  4.35  19.55 
Total Current Liabilities  582.38  1,004.32 
Total Liabilities  892.49  1,387.04 
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES  3,544.75  4,162.37 
The accompanying Material accounting Policies and notes from an 
integral part of the financial statements

1 to 42

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board 

For D K P & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 126305W

Shahin N. Khemani
Managing Director
DIN: 03296813

Rahul A. Khemani 
Director - Chief Financial Officer
DIN: 03290468

Pooja Jain
Partner
Membership No. 185563

Binita Gosalia
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer
 ACS: 25806

Place: Mumbai
Dated: May 21, 2025

Place: Mumbai
Dated: May 21, 2025
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Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2025                ` In Lakhs 

Particulars Note No. 2024-25 2023-24

Income

Revenue from Operations 22 24,928.96 25,558.33

Other Income 23 50.30 37.94

Total Income 24,979.26 25,596.27

Expenses

Cost of Materials Consumed 24 20,612.14 21,482.38

Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods 25 220.55  (381.00)

Employee Benefits Expense 26 549.96 534.94

Finance Costs 27 20.37 45.57

Depreciation and Amortisation Expense 28 255.25 254.92

Other Expenses 29 3,441.84 3,588.08

Total Expenses 25,100.11 25,524.89

Profit Before Taxes  (120.85) 71.38

Tax Expenses

Current Tax for the current year  -   41.80

Current Tax - related to earlier years  2.63  (0.92)

Deferred Tax  (22.87)  (21.86)

Total Tax Expense  (20.24) 19.02

Profit for the year  (100.61) 52.36

Other Comprehensive Income

(I) Items that will not be reclassified to statement of profit    
and loss

(a) Remeasurement gain / (loss) of defined benefit liabilities  (3.68)  (14.42)

(b) Tax expense relating to above  0.93  3.63 

Total Other Comprehensive Income  (2.75)  (10.79)

Total Comprehensive Income for the year  (103.36) 41.57

Earning per equity share of face value of ` 10/- each

(1) Basic (in `)  (5.11)  2.66

(2) Diluted (in `)  (5.11)  2.66

The accompanying Material accounting Policies and notes 
from an integral part of the financial statements

1 to 42

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board 

For D K P & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 126305W

Shahin N. Khemani
Managing Director
DIN: 03296813

Rahul A. Khemani 
Director - Chief Financial Officer
DIN: 03290468

Pooja Jain
Partner
Membership No. 185563

Binita Gosalia
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer
ACS: 25806

Place: Mumbai
Dated: May 21, 2025

Place: Mumbai
Dated: May 21, 2025
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY AS AT  31st March,  2025                             

A. 	 EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

` In Lakhs

Financial Year 2023-24 Financial Year 2024-25

Balance  as at 1st April 
2023

Changes in equity 
share capital during 

the year 2023-24

Balance as at      
31st March 2024

Changes in equity 
share capital during 

the year 2024-25

Balance as at           
31st March 2025

 197.55  -    197.55  -    197.55 

B. 	 OTHER EQUITY

` In Lakhs

Particulars

Reserves and Surplus

Total

Capital 
reserve on 

account 
of subsidy 
by Central 

Government

Capital 
Reserve 

on account 
of shares 
forfeited

Security 
Premium

General 
Reserve

Retained 
Earnings

Balance as at 1st April 2023  25.00  0.16  33.80  58.34  2,458.31  2,575.62 
Profit for the year  -    -    -    -    52.36  52.36 
Other comprehensive income for 
the year, net of income tax

 -    -    -    -    (10.79)  (10.79)

Dividends  -    -    -    -    (39.41)  (39.41)
Balance as at 31st March 2024  25.00  0.16  33.80  58.34  2,458.31  2,575.62

Balance as at 1st April 2024  25.00  0.16  33.80  58.34  2,460.48  2,577.78 
Profit for the year  -    -    -    -    (100.61)  (100.61)
other comprehensive income for the 
year, remeasurement of employee 
benefit liabilities, (net of income tax)

 -    -    -    -    (2.75)  (2.75)

Dividends  -    -    -    -    (19.71)  (19.71)
Balance as at 31st March 2025  25.00  0.16  33.80  58.34  2,337.41  2,454.71 

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board 

For D K P & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 126305W

Shahin N. Khemani
Managing Director
DIN: 03296813

Rahul A. Khemani 
Director - Chief Financial Officer
DIN: 03290468

Pooja Jain
Partner
Membership No. 185563

Binita Gosalia
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer
ACS: 25806

Place: Mumbai
Dated: May 21, 2025

Place: Mumbai
Dated: May 21, 2025
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 Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31st March, 2025          			         ` In Lakhs
Particulars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
A. Cash flow from Operating Activities

Profit before Tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss  (120.85)  71.38 
Adjustment for:

Depreciation and Amortisation expenses  255.25  254.92 
Provision for  leave encashment  1.58  4.66 
Provision for gratuity  8.32  6.77 
Share of Loss/(Profit) from Partnership Firm  0.06  0.14 
 Loss/(Profit) on sale of property, plant and equipments (net)  (42.52)  (1.97)
Interest Income  (3.70)  (5.65)
Interest on Income Tax Refund  (1.05)  -   
Interest to/from a Partnership firm  0.01  -   
Interest paid to banks and others - Finance Cost  16.81  40.22 
Provision for impairment/Doubtful Debts (written back) net  (0.25)  0.23 
Bad debts written off  0.28  0.11 
Debit balances written off  0.07  0.20 
Credit balances written back  (2.07)  (1.60)

Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes  111.94  369.41 
Adjustment for:

 Decrease/(Increase) in Inventories  234.99  (350.62)
 Decrease/(Increase) in Trade and other receivables  60.00  530.40 
 (Decrease)/Increase in Trade and other payables  (167.70)  (87.34)
Cash generated in Operations  239.23  461.85 
 Income taxes refund received/(paid) [net]  0.93  (71.29)

Net Cash generated from Operating Activities (A)  240.16  390.56 

B. Cash flow from Investing Activities

   Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipments  51.07  9.08 
   Purchase of property, plant and equipments  (22.70)  (33.44)
  (Investments in) proceeds from bank deposits  37.77  11.24 
   Interest Received  4.75  5.65 

Net Cash generated/(used in) from Investing Activities (B)  70.89  (7.47)

C. Cash Flow from Financing Activities
Repayment of long term borrowings  (4.27)  (227.50)
Repayment of borrowing from directors/shareholders  (48.00)  -   
Dividend paid  (20.04)  (40.59)
Interest paid to banks and others - Finance Cost  (16.81)  (40.22)

Net Cash Used in Financing Activities (C)  (89.12)  (308.31)
Net Increase/Decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A+B+C)  221.93  74.78 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year  (214.18)  (288.96)

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year  7.75  (214.18)
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Change in Liability arising from financing activities
` In Lakhs

 1st April, 2024  Cash Flow  31st March, 2025 

Borrowings - Non Current (Refer Note 14)  212.67  (52.27)  160.40 

Total  212.67  (52.27)  160.40 

 1st April, 2023  Cash Flow  31st March, 2024 

Borrowings - Non Current (Refer Note 14)  440.17  (227.50)  212.67 

Total  440.17  (227.50)  212.67 

NOTES TO CASH FLOW STATEMENT

1. 	 The above Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared under the “Indirect Method” as set out in Indian Accounting    
Standards-Ind AS 7 “Statement of Cash Flows” issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

2. 	 Previous years figures have been re-grouped and re-classified wherever necessary to correspond with the figures of the    
current year.

3. 	 Figures in brackets are outflows.

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board 

For D K P & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 126305W

Shahin N. Khemani
Managing Director
DIN: 03296813

Rahul A. Khemani 
Director - Chief Financial Officer
DIN: 03290468

Pooja Jain
Partner
Membership No. 185563

Binita Gosalia
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer
ACS: 25806

Place: Mumbai
Dated: May 21, 2025

Place: Mumbai
Dated: May 21, 2025
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A.	 CORPORATE INFORMATION

	 Blue Chip Tex Industries Limited (the ‘Company’) is a public limited company domiciled and incorporated in India under 
the Indian Companies Act, 1956, CIN No.L17100DN1985PLC005561. The registered office of the company is situated 
at 63-B, Danudyog Sahakari Sangh Ltd., Village Piparia, Silvassa 396230, (U.T.) Dadra & Nagar Haveli and Corporate 
Office where the books of Accounts are maintained is situated at Office No. 15-17, 1st floor, Maker Chambers III, 
Jamnalal Bajaj Road, Nariman Point, Mumbai - 400021.

	 The Company is engaged mainly in manufacturing of polyester texturising yarn. The Company has manufacturing 
plants in Union Territory of Dadra and Nagar Haveli, India and entire sales in domestic market. The Company is listed 
on the Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE).

	 The financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 were approved for issue by Company’s Board of Directors 
on May 21, 2025.

B.	 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

B.1 Basis for preparation and presentation of financial statements

	 The financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS’) notified under 
Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read together with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 
2015.

	 The financial statements have been prepared and presented under the historical cost convention, on the accrual 
basis of accounting except for certain financial assets and financial liabilities that are measured at fair values at 
the end of each reporting period, as stated in the accounting policies set out below.

	 The financial statements of the Company have been prepared to comply with the Indian Accounting standards 
(“Ind As”) including the rules notified under the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and presentation 
and disclosure requirements of Division II of Schedule III to the Companies Act 2013 (the Act).

	 The accounting policies have been applied consistently over all the periods presented in these financial statements.

	 All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current based on the Company’s normal operating 
cycle for yarn business, as per the criteria set out in the Schedule III to the Act.

	 The Company’s financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees, which is also its functional currency, and all 
amounts are rounded off to the nearest Lakh unless otherwise stated.

B.2 	 Summary of Material Accounting Policies

              a)  (i)     Property, Plant and Equipment

•	 Property, Plant and Equipment are carried at historical cost of acquisition or construction less 
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. All costs, net of recoverable 
taxes, including cost of financing till commencement of commercial production are capitalised.

•	 Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of property, plant and equipment are measured as the 
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized 
in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognized.

•	 Capital work in progress and Capital advances: Cost of assets not ready for intended use, as on the 
Balance Sheet date, is shown as capital work in progress. Advances given towards acquisition of 
property, plant and equipment outstanding at each Balance Sheet date are disclosed as Other Non-
Current Assets.

•	 Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment is provided using straight line method except furniture 
and fixtures which are depreciated using written down value method. Depreciation is provided based 
on the estimated useful life of the assets as prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act 2013, 
except in respect of Texturizing Machines and Compressors where, based on the certification obtained 
from the Chartered Engineer, the estimated useful life is taken as 25 years instead of 15 years as 
prescribed in Schedule II. Estimated useful life taken as 3 years for replaced part of air-compressor 
instead of 15 years as prescribed in schedule II. Also, Leasehold Land is amortized over the remaining 
period of lease. Freehold land is not depreciated and carried at historical cost.

•	 The estimated residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of Property Plant and 
Equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.
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(ii) 	 Other Intangible Assets

•	 Other intangible assets are carried at cost of acquisition less accumulated amortisation.

•	 Computer Software are amortised at over a period of five years.

b)	 Investments:

	 The Company has elected to recognize its non-current investments in group entities at cost. The details of 
such investments are given in Note 3.

c)	 Inventories:

	 Items of inventories are measured at lower of cost and net realisable value after providing for obsolescence, 
if any.

-	 Cost of inventories comprises of all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs, including 
manufacturing overheads, net of recoverable taxes, incurred in bringing inventories to their respective 
present location and condition.

-	 Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated 
costs of completion and estimated cost necessary to make the sale.

-	 Items of Inventories are valued as under:

	 Raw materials, packing materials and oil valued at lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost 
is determined on the basis of the first in, first out (FIFO) method. Raw materials held for use in 
the production of inventories are not written down below cost if the finished products in which 
they will be incorporated are expected to be sold at or above cost.

	 Manufactured finished goods are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost 
includes direct materials plus proportion of manufacturing overheads.

	 Stock of spares and stores is charged to profit or loss in the year of purchase and no 
adjustment is made for such stock, if any at the year end.

d)	 Employee Benefits :

(i) 	 Short term employee benefits:

	 Short term employee benefits are recognised as an expense on accrual basis at the undiscounted 
amount in the statement of profit and loss of the year in which related service is rendered.

(ii) 	 Defined contribution plans:

	 The eligible employees of the Company are entitled to receive post employment benefits in respect 
of provident and family pension fund, in which both the employees and the Company make monthly 
contributions at a specified percentage of the employees’ eligible salary (currently 12% of employees’ 
eligible salary). The contributions are made to the Regional Provident Fund Commissioner (RPFC) 
which are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss as incurred.

(iii) 	 Defined benefit plans:

	 Post employment and other long term employee benefits are recognised as expense in the statement 
of profit and loss for the year in which the employees have rendered services. The expense is 
recognised at the present value of the amount payable determined using actuarial valuation techniques. 
Re-measurement of Defined Benefit Plans in respect of post-employment are charged to the Other 
Comprehensive Income.

e)	 Tax Expense:

	 The tax expense for the period comprises current tax and deferred income tax. Tax is recognised in statement 
of profit and loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in the Other Comprehensive Income 
or in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in Other Comprehensive Income and Equity.

•	 Current Tax

	 Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or to be 
paid to the Income Tax authorities, based on tax rates and laws that are enacted at the Balance sheet 
date.
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•	 Deferred Tax

	 Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and 
liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of 
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to 
apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax 
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. The carrying 
amount of Deferred tax liabilities and assets are reviewed at the end of each reporting period.

e)	 Revenue Recognition:

	 Revenue towards satisfaction of a performance obligation is measured at the amount of transaction price 
(net of variable consideration) allocated to that performance obligation. The transaction price of goods sold 
and services rendered is net of variable consideration on account of various discounts and schemes offered 
by the Company as part of the contract

•	 Revenue from sale of goods is recognised upon transfer of significant risk and rewards of ownership 
of the goods to the customer which generally coincides with dispatch of goods to customer. Sales 
exclude Goods and Service Tax (GST). It is measured at fair value of consideration received or 
receivable, net of returns, rebates and discounts.

•	 Revenue in respect of insurance or other claims, quantity discount on purchase etc. is recognised only 
when it is reasonably certain that the ultimate collection will be made.

•	 Interest Income is recognised on time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding 
and the interest rate applicable.

•	 Dividend Income is recognised when the Company’s right to receive the amount has been established.

•	 Job work Income is recognised when related services are rendered.

f)	 Provisions, Contingent liabilities and Contingent assets:

	 Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result 
of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required 
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. If the effect of 
the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, 
when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision 
due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

	 Contingent liabilities are not recognised, but are disclosed in the Notes. Contingent assets are neither 
recognised nor disclosed in the financial statements.

g)	 Impairment of Non-Financial Assets – Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets:

	 The Company assesses at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that any Property, 
Plant and Equipment and intangible assets or group of assets, called Cash Generating Units (CGU) may be 
impaired. If any such indication exists the recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is estimated to determine 
the extent of impairment, if any. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual 
asset, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the CGU to which the asset belongs.

	 An impairment loss is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss to the extent asset’s carrying amount 
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is higher of an asset’s fair value less cost of 
disposal and value in use. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their 
present value using pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of 
money and risk specific to the assets.

	 The impairment loss recognised in prior accounting period is reversed if there has been a change in the 
estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised.

h)	 Finance costs:

	 Borrowing costs consists of interest cost and other borrowing costs that an entity incurs in connection 
with the borrowing of funds including exchange differences to the extent regarded an adjustment to the 
borrowing costs.

	 Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition and construction of an asset that necessarily takes a 
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substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use are capitalised as part of the cost of the respective 
assets up to the date when such assets are ready for their intended use. The borrowing cost eligible for 
capitalization is being netted off against any income arising on temporary investment.

	 All other borrowing costs are charged to the statement of profit and loss for the period for which they are 
incurred.

J) 	 Government grants:

	 Grants and subsidies from the government are recognised at their fair value where there is reasonable 
assurance that the grant will be received and the Company will comply with all attached conditions.

	 Grants and subsidies, except which relates to Property Plant & Equipment, received from Government is 
credited to statement of profit and loss in the period for which it relates.

K) 	 Foreign currency transactions and Translation:

	 Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of transaction. 
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency 
closing rates of exchange at the reporting date.

	 Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in Statement 
of Profit and Loss except to the extent of exchange differences which are regarded as an adjustment to 
interest costs on foreign currency borrowings that are directly attributable to the acquisition or construction 
of qualifying assets which are capitalised as cost of assets.

	 Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are recorded using 
the exchange rates at the date of the transaction. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign 
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was measured. The gain or 
loss arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition 
of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair 
value gain or loss is recognised in Other Comprehensive Income or Statement of Profit and Loss are also 
recognised in Other Comprehensive Income or Statement of Profit and Loss, respectively).

 l) 	 Lease:

	 As a Lessee: The Company has elected to account for short term leases and leases of low-value assets 
using the exemption given under Ind AS 116, Leases. Instead of recognising a right-of-use asset and lease 
liability, the payments in relation to these are recognised as an expense in statement of profit and loss on a 
straight-line basis over the lease term or on another systematic basis if that basis is more representative of 
the pattern of the Company’s benefit.

m) 	 Research and Development Expenditure:

	 Revenue expenditure pertaining to research is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss. Development 
costs of products are charged to the statement of profit and loss unless a product’s technological and 
commercial feasibility has been established, in which case such expenditure is capitalised.

n) 	 Financial Instruments

I)	 Financial Assets

1.	 Initial Recognition and Measurement

	 All Financial Assets are initially recognized at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly 
attributable to the acquisition or issue of Financial Assets, which are not at Fair Value through 
Profit and Loss, are added to the fair value on initial recognition. Purchase and sale of Financial 
Assets are recognised using trade date accounting. However, trade receivables that do not 
contain a significant financing component are measured at transaction price.

2.	 Subsequent Measurement

i.	 Financial assets measured at amortised cost (AC)

	 Financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose 
objective is to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual 
terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely 
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
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ii.	 Financial Assets Measured at Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income 
(FVTOCI)

	 Financial Asset is measured at FVTOCI if it is held within a business model whose 
objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial 
assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to 
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount 
outstanding.

iii.	 Financial assets measured at fair value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL)

	 Financial Asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are measured at 
FVTPL.

3.	 Investment In Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint Ventures

	 The Company has accounted for its investments in group entity at amortised cost less impairment 
loss (if any).

4.	 Other Equity Investments

	 All other equity investments are measured at fair value, with value changes recognised in 
Statement of Profit and Loss, except for those equity investments for which the Company has 
elected to present the value changes in ‘Other Comprehensive Income’.

5.	 Impairment of Financial Assets

	 The Company recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses on:

-	 financial assets measured at amortised cost;

	 At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at 
amortised cost has impaired and provisions are made for impairment accordingly. A 
financial asset is ‘credit impaired’ when one or more events that have a detrimental impact 
on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

	 The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit 
losses, except for the following, which are measured as 12 month expected credit losses:

-	 other debt securities and bank balances for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default 
occurring over the expected life of the financial instrument) has not increased significantly 
since initial recognition.

	 Loss allowances for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime 
expected credit losses.

	 12-month expected credit losses are the portion of expected credit losses that result from 
default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date (or a shorter 
period if the expected life of the instrument is less than 12 months).

	 When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly 
since initial recognition and when estimating expected credit losses, the Company considers 
reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost 
or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based 
on the Company’s historical experience and informed credit assessment and including 
forward looking information.

II)	 Financial Liabilities

1.	 Initial recognition and measurement

	 All financial liabilities are recognized at fair value and in case borrowings, net of directly attributable 
cost. Fees of recurring nature are directly recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss as 
finance cost.
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2.	 Subsequent measurement

	 Financial liabilities are carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method. For trade 
and other payables maturing within one year from the balance sheet date, the carrying value 
approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments.

III)	 Derecognition of Financial Instruments

	 The company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the 
financial asset expire or it transfers the Financial Asset and the transfer qualifies for derecognition 
under Ind AS 109. A Financial Liability (or a part of a Financial Liability) is derecognized from the 
Company’s Balance Sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled 
or expired.

IV)	 Offsetting Instruments

	 Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities are offset and the net amount is presented in the balance sheet 
when, and only when, the Company has a legally enforceable right to set off the amount and it intends, 
either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

V)	 Cash and Cash Equivalents

	 Cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows comprises of 
cash on hand, cheque on hand, bank balances in current account, fixed deposits with banks with original 
maturity of less than 3 months and short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to 
known amounts of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

	 For the purpose of Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalent includes bank overdraft repayable 
on demand.

C) 	 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

	 The preparation of the Company’s Financial Statements requires management to make judgement, estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amount of revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities and the accompanying 
disclosures. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material 
adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in next financial year.

1)	 Depreciation / Amortisation And Useful Lives of Property Plant and Equipment / Intangible Assets

	 Property, plant and equipment / intangible assets are depreciated / amortised over their estimated useful lives, 
after taking into account estimated residual value. Management reviews the estimated useful lives and residual 
values of the assets annually in order to determine the amount of depreciation / amortisation to be recorded during 
any reporting period. The useful lives and residual values are based on the company’s historical experience with 
similar assets and take into account anticipated technological changes. The depreciation / amortisation for future 
periods are revised if there are significant changes from previous estimates.

2)	 Recoverability of Trade Receivable

	 Judgements are required in assessing the recoverability of overdue trade receivables and determining whether 
a provision against those receivables is required. Factors considered include assessing the credit rating of the 
counterparty, the amount and timing of anticipated future payments and any possible actions that can be taken to 
mitigate the risk of non-payment.

3)	 Provisions

	 Provisions and liabilities are recognized in the period when it becomes probable that there will be a future outflow 
of funds resulting from past operations or events and the amount of cash outflow can be reliably estimated. The 
timing of recognition and quantification of the liability require the application of judgement to existing facts and 
circumstances, which can be subject to change. The carrying amounts of provisions and liabilities are reviewed 
regularly and revised to take account of changing facts and circumstances.

4)	 Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

	 The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If 
any indication exists, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount 
is the higher of an asset’s or Cash Generating Units (CGU’s) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in 
use. It is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely 
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independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU 
exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

	 In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using pre-tax 
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the 
asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transaction are taken into account, if no such 
transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.

5)	 Impairment of Financial Assets

	 The impairment provisions for Financial Assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and expected 
cash loss rates. The Company uses judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the 
impairment calculation, based on Company’s past history, existing market conditions as well as forward looking 
estimates at the end of each reporting period.

 D)	  Recent accounting pronouncements

 	Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under 
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. For the year ended March 31, 2025, 
MCA has not notified any new standards or amendments to the existing standards applicable to the Company.
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Note  Particulars As at
31st March, 2025

As at
31st March, 2024

3 NON CURRENT INVESTMENTS:

Investment - Unquoted, amortized at cost

(i)  In Equity Shares

     4,18,000 (4,18,000) Equity Shares of ₹ 10 each fully paid up of      
Beekaylon Synthetics Private Limited 

41.90 41.90

(ii) Investment in Capital of Partnership Firm

     Jay Gee Rayons (Refer Note No.32 and 34) 0.05 0.05

Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 41.95 41.95

4 OTHER NON CURRENT  FINANCIAL ASSETS:

(i) Security Deposits  1.43  1.43 

(ii) Bank Deposits with more than 12 months maturity  -    50.22 

[Fixed Deposit Receipts pledged under bank's lien]

Total  1.43  51.65 

5 OTHER NON CURRENT ASSETS

 (i) Prepaid Expenses  3.09  3.29 

Total  3.09  3.29 

CURRENT ASSETS #
# Bank has first charge on entire current assets as a primary security 
for working capital loans (Refer note no. 17)

6 Inventories (As valued, verified and certified by the management)

(i)   Raw materials  337.25  345.84 

(ii)  Finished goods  754.73  975.28 

(iii) Packing materials and oil  45.15  50.99 

Total  1,137.13  1,372.11 

7 Trade Receivables:

(i)  Secured  -    -   
(i)  Unsecured
          Considered Good#  556.64  669.47 
          Considered credit impaired  3.39  3.64 

 560.03  673.11 
Less: Allowance for Doubtful Debts  3.39  3.64 

Total  556.64  669.47 
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7.1 Related Party:
     �#Includes ₹ 3.44 Lakhs (Previous Year ₹ 5.65 Lakhs) from related party- Beekaylon Synthetics Private Limited 

[Refer Note No.32]

7.2   Ageing Schedule

Trade Receivables ageing schedule as at 31.03.2025

Outstanding for following periods from the date of transaction

Particulars Less than  
6 months

6 months 
-1 year

1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 
years

Total

(a) Undisputed Trade Receivables

(i)  considered good  549.92  2.93  3.77  0.02  -    556.64 

(ii) considered doubtful  -    -    -    0.07  3.32  3.39 

(b) Disputed Trade Receivables

(i)  considered good  -    -    -    -    -    -   

(ii) considered doubtful  -    -    -    -    -    -   

Total  549.92  2.93  3.77  0.09  3.32  560.03 

Trade Receivables ageing schedule as at 31.03.2024

Outstanding for following periods from the date of transaction

Particulars Less than 6 
months

6 months -1 
year

1-2 years 2-3 
years

More than 
3 years

Total

(a) Undisputed Trade Receivables

(i)  considered good  666.21  3.24  0.02  -    -    669.47 

(ii) considered doubtful  -    -    0.31  0.11  3.22  3.64 

(b) Disputed Trade Receivables

(i)  considered good  -    -    -    -    -    -   

(ii) considered doubtful  -    -    -    -    -    -   

Total  666.21  3.24  0.33  0.11  3.22  673.11 
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Note   Particulars As at
31st March, 2025

As at
31st March, 2024

8a Cash and Cash Equivalents:
(i) Cash on hand  0.84  0.93 
(ii) Balances with banks - current accounts  6.91  4.03 
(iii) Deposits with banks maturity for less than 3 months  -    11.44 

Sub - Total  7.75  16.40 

Cash and Cash Equivalents as per Cash Flow Statement
Cash on hand  0.84  0.93 
Balances with banks - current accounts  6.91  4.03 
Deposit with Bank maturity for less than 3 months  -    11.44 
Working capital loans from bank - overdraft payable on demand  -    (230.58)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the year end  7.75  (214.18)

8b Bank Balances other than cash and cash equivalents:
Bank balances in current accounts - unclaimed dividend accounts  17.22  17.55 
Deposits with banks maturity for more than 3 months but less than 
12 months

 24.34  11.55 

Sub - Total  41.56  29.10 
[Fixed Deposit Receipts pledged under bank’s lien]

Total (8a+8b)  49.31  45.50 

9 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
Interest Accrued on Deposit with banks  0.08  1.14 
Others Receivables  17.36  19.82 

Total  17.44  20.96 

10 Current tax Assets
Advane Tax (net of provision for tax)  26.32  29.88 

Total  26.32  29.88 

10.1 Advance Tax paid (net of provision for tax)
At the start of the year  29.88  (0.52)
Charge for the year  -    (41.80)
Tax related to earlier year  (2.63)  0.91 
Tax paid during the year  (0.93)  71.29 
At the End of year  26.32  29.88 

10.2 Income Taxes  Year Ended                 
31st March 2025 

 Year Ended                 
31st March 2024 

A. The major components of income tax expense for the year are as under:  29.88  (0.52)
(i) Income tax recognised in the Statement of profit and loss

Current tax:
In respect of current year  -    41.80 
In respect of earlier years  2.63  (0.91)
Deferred Tax:
In respect of current year  (22.87)  (21.86)
Income tax expenses recognised in the Statement of profit and 
loss

 (20.24)  19.03 

(ii) Income tax expense recognised in OCI
Deferred tax expense on remeasurements of defined benefit plans  0.93  3.63 
Income tax expense recognised in OCI  0.93  3.63 
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B. Reconciliation of tax expense and the the accounting profit for 
the year is as under
Profit before tax  (120.84)  71.38 

Income tax expense calculated at 25.17% -  17.97 
Tax effect on non-deductible expenses  -    23.78 
Effect of Income that is exempted from tax
Others (Including deferred tax)  (20.24)  (22.73)

 (20.24)  19.02 
Tax expense as per Statement of profit and loss  (20.24)  19.02 

11 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
Prepaid Expenses  5.73  5.03 
Advance to Suppliers #  14.54  0.33 
Others  26.76  16.69 

Total  47.03  22.05 
11.1 Related party

#Includes ₹ 14.33 Lakhs (Previous Year ₹ Nil)
from related party- Beekaylon Synthetics Private Limited . [Refer Note 
No.32]

Note  Particulars As at
31st March, 2025

As at
31st March, 2024

12 Equity Share Capital:

12.1 Authorized Share Capital -

25,00,000 (Previous Year - 25,00,000) Equity Shares of ₹ 10 each  250.00  250.00 
 Total  250.00  250.00

12.2 Issued, Subscribed and Paid up-
19,70,500 (Previous Year - 19,70,500)Equity Shares of ` 10 each 
fully paid up

 197.05  197.05 

Add: Forfeited Shares  0.50  0.50 
                                                                             Total  197.55  197.55

12.3 The Company has only one class of issued capital, all the equity shares carry equal rights and obligations including 
for dividend and with respect to voting .

12.4 The details of Shareholders holding more than 5% shares:

Sr.
no Name of the Shareholder As at

31st March, 2025
As at

31st March, 2024
1 Beekaylon Synthetics Private Limited

No. of shares  4,86,188  4,86,188 
%  24.67  24.67 

2 Indotex Export House LLP
No. of shares  2,08,300  2,08,300 

%  10.57  10.57 
3 Sangam Syntwist Textile Private Limited

No. of shares  1,62,100  1,62,100 
%  8.23  8.23 

4 Investor Education and Protection Fund Authority, Ministry of 
Corporate Affairs

No. of shares  1,59,363  1,38,861 
%  8.09  7.05 
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Notes on Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025 ` In Lakhs

12.5 Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding: As at
31st March, 2025

As at
31st March, 2024

Number of shares at the beginning of the year  19,70,500  19,70,500 
Shares issued during the year  -    -   
Number of shares at the end of the year.  19,70,500  19,70,500

12.6 There were no shares issued pursuant to contracts without payment being received in cash , by way of bonus issue 
and no shares were bought back in the period of five years immediately preceding the date as at which Balance 
Sheet is prepared.

12.7 There were no change in Equity Share Capital due to prior period errors
12.8 Disclosure of Shareholding of Promoters

I - Equity Shares held by Promoters at the end of the year 31st  March, 2025

Sr. 
no Promoter Name

No. of 
Fully Paid 
up Equity 

Shares held

Percentages 
of  Total 
Shares

Percentage 
change during 

the year  
2024-25

1 Beekaylon Synthetics Private Limited 4,86,188 24.67  -   
2 Sangam Syntwist Textiles Private Limited 1,62,100 8.23  -   
3 Ashok K. Khemani 74,690 3.79  -   
4 Nand K. Khemani 70,531 3.58  -   
5 Rachna A. Khemani 16,495 0.84  -   
6 Rahul A. Khemani 67,580 3.43  -   
7 Shahin N. Khemani 70,880 3.60  -   
8 Siddharth Ashok Khemani 21,140 1.07  -   
9 Indotex Export House LLP 2,08,300 10.57  -   

10 Setron Textile Mills Private Limited 4,400 0.22  -   
Total 11,82,304 60.00  -   

II -Equity Shares held by Promoters at the end of the year 31st  March, 2024

Sr. 
no Promoter Name

No. of 
Fully Paid 
up Equity 

Shares held

Percentages 
of  Total 
Shares

Percentage 
change during 

the year 
 2023-24

1 Beekaylon Synthetics Private Limited 4,86,188 24.67  -   
2 Sangam Syntwist Textiles Private Limited 1,62,100 8.23  -   
3 Ashok K. Khemani 74,690 3.79  -   
4 Nand K. Khemani 70,531 3.58  -   
5 Rachna A. Khemani 16,495 0.84  -   
6 Rahul A. Khemani 67,580 3.43  -   
7 Shahin N. Khemani 70,880 3.60  -   
8 Siddharth Ashok Khemani 21,140 1.07  -   
9 Indotex Export House LLP 2,08,300 10.57  -   

10 Setron Textile Mills Private Limited 4,400 0.22  -   
Total 11,82,304 60.00  -   

 	
12.9 The Company has no Holding or Subsidiary Companies.

.
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Note     Particulars As at
31st March, 2025

As at
31st March, 2024

13 Other Equity:

Reserves and Surplus

(i) Capital Reserve No.1

   (Central Government Investment subsidy for  unit in Backward Area)

    As per last Balance sheet  25.00  25.00 

(ii) Capital Reserve No.2

     (Amount forfeited on equity shares warrants)

     As per last Balance sheet  0.16  0.16 

(iii) Securities Premium 

     (Amount received on issue of equity shares at premium)

     As per last Balance sheet  33.80  33.80 

(iv) General Reserve

    (Amount accumulated as General Reserve from Retained Earnings)

     As per last Balance sheet  58.34  58.34 

(v) Retained Earnings

     As per last Balance sheet  2,460.48  2,458.31 

     Add : Profit for the year  (100.60)  52.36 

     Add : Other Comprehensive Income  (2.76)  (10.79)

 2,357.12  2,499.89 

Less: Appropriations

         Dividends on Equity Shares  19.71  39.41 

         [Dividends per share ₹ 1.00 (Previous year ₹ 2.00)]

Net retained Earnings after appropriatins  2,337.41  2,460.48 

Total  2,454.71  2,577.78 

14 Borrowings:

Secured Loan - At amortized Cost:

Term Loans from Bank  -    4.27 
Less : current maturities of Term Loan, (refer Note no.17)  -    (4.27)

 -    -   

Unsecured Loans:

Loans from related parties ( Refer Note No.32) 
(i)  Loan from Directors  -    48.00 
(ii) Loan from Other  160.40  160.40 

Total  160.40  208.40 
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14.1 Term  loan from Bank Aggregating to ₹ Nil Lakhs (Previous Year - ₹ 4.27 Lakhs) Primary Security: First charge on 
entire fixed assets of the company, both present and future, and second charge on current assets of the company 
both present and future.
Collateral Security : Extension of first and exclusive charge on
a)     �All that piece and parcel of land totally admeasuring about 6924.50 sq.mtrs. Bearing plot no 63B admeasuring 

1474.5 sq.mtrs. plot no.64A(part) admeasuring above 523.00 sq.mtrs. Plot No.68B admeasuring about 
1825.50 sq.mtrs and plot no 69 admeasuring about 3102.00 sq.mtrs lying being and situated at Piparia 
Industrial Estate, Village Amli, Silvassa, Union Territory of Dadra and Nagar Haveli, together with structure 
standing thereon admeasuring about 1704.23 sq.mtrs.

	  �Exclusive equitable/registered mortgage charge on Land (admeasuring of 3300 sq.mtr) and Building 
(admeasuring area of approx 1491.08 sq.mtrs on land of 3300 sq.mtrs) located at 45B Govt.Industrial Estate, 
Masat, Silvassa and by way of hypothecation on plant and machinery purchased out of additional Term Loan 
(New Security) owned by the Company.

b)    �Personal guarantee of the two promoters of the Company.

Repayment Schedule and Rate of Interest of Borrowings referred above:

Loan
No.

Floating Rate of Interest        
                                                                                                2025-26 2026-27

1 9.00%**                                                   -  160.40 

** As per Sanction Letter of  Term Loan, Repayment of unsecured loan from Directors and Others is subjected to terms and 
conditions as stipulated in sanction letter.

NOTE Particulars  As at  
31st March 2025

 As at  
31st March 2024

15  PROVISIONS-NON CURRENT:

Provision for Leave Encashment  17.46  15.84 
Provision for Gratuity (Refer Note No.26.1A)  -    2.43 

Total  17.46  18.27 

16 Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)

At the start of the year  156.05  181.54 
Charge / ( Credit) to statement of profit and loss 

 Related to Property Plant and Equipment  (17.95)  (21.13)
 Related to Disallowances under the Income Tax Act, 1961   4.15  (4.36)
 Related to carry forward business loss  (10.00)  -   

At the end of the year  132.25  156.05 

17  BORROWINGS:

Secured

a) Working Capital Loan at amortized cost
 - bank overdraft  -    230.58 
b) Current Maturities of Long Term Loan (Refer Note No.14)   -    4.27 

Total  -    234.85 
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NOTE Particulars  As at  
31st March 2025

 As at  
31st March 2024

18 TRADE PAYABLES:
a.Dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises *  154.07  176.06 
b.Dues of other than micro enterprises and small enterprises #  333.29  447.68 

Total  487.36  623.74 

#	 Includes ₹ Nil Lakhs (Previous Year - ₹ 103.91 Lakhs) payable to a related party - Beekaylon Synthetics Private 
Limited (Refer Note No.32)

*	 Dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises as at the year end has been determined on the basis of information 
available with the Company and relied upon by auditors. The Company has received intimations from some of 
their vendors regarding their status under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 and 
disclosure under the said Act is made accordingly.

(i) Principal amount outstanding (due or not due) remaining unpaid to 
Micro and Small Enterprises

 150.47  171.36 

(ii) Interest due and payable to Micro and Small Enterprises  3.60  4.70 
 (iii)         Ageing Schedule
a) 	 Trade Payables ageing schedule as at 31.03.2025		

Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment Total
Un-Billed Not Due Less than 

1 year
1-2 

years
2-3 

years
More than 

3 years
(a) Undisputed Trade Payables

(i)  MSME  3.60  150.47  -    -    -    -    154.07 
(ii) Others  128.30  153.15  41.40  3.42  5.50  1.52  333.29 
(b) Disputed Trade Payables
(i)  MSME  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   
(ii) Others  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Total  131.90  303.62  41.40  3.42  5.50  1.52  487.36 

b) 	 Trade Payables ageing schedule as at 31.03.2024

Particulars  Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment Total
Un-Billed Not Due Less than 

1 year
1-2 

years
2-3 

years
More than 

3 years
(a) Undisputed Trade Payables

(i) MSME  4.70  171.36  -    -    -    -    176.06 
(ii) Others  120.42  51.23  263.88  3.81  0.85  7.49  447.68 
(b) Disputed Trade Payables
(i) MSME  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   
(ii) Others  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Total  125.12  222.59  263.88  3.81  0.85  7.49  623.74 

Particulars  As at  
31st March 2025

 As at  
31st March 2024

19 OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES:
Unclaimed dividend *  17.22  17.55 
Employees benefits payable  28.55  28.10 
Due to a firm wherein the Company is a Partner  
(Refer Note No. 32 and 34)

 0.20  0.14 

Total  45.97  45.79 

�*  These figures do not include any amounts due and outstanding to be credited to Investor Education and Protection Fund. 
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Notes on Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025 ` In Lakhs

2024-25 2023-24

20  OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES:

Statutory Liabilities related to TDS and Employees  23.14  27.38 
Advances received from customers  21.56  53.01 

Total  44.70  80.39 

21  PROVISIONS:

Provision for Leave Encashment  2.55  2.59 
Provision for Gratuity ( Refer Note No.26.1A    )  1.80  16.96 

Total  4.35  19.55 

22 REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS:

(a) Sale of Products
 Texturised and Twisted Yarn  24,878.50  25,501.15 

(b) Sale of Services
 Job Work Income  1.66  -   

(c) Other Operating Revenue
 Sale of Scrap  44.18  52.72 
 Sale of Others  4.62  4.46 

Total  24,928.96  25,558.33 

22.1 Reconciliation of Revenue from operations with contract price
Contract price  25,178.52  25,566.19 
Add: Freight & Insurance Collected  16.41  16.73 
Less: Sales Return  265.20  24.01 
Less: Rebates & Incentives  0.77  0.58 
Total Revenue from operation  24,928.96  25,558.33 

23 OTHER INCOME:

(a) Interest Income 
     Interest on Deposit with Banks  1.83  4.23 
     Interest from Customers  1.87  1.42 
     Interest on Income Tax Refund  1.05  -   
     Interest on Investment in Partnership Firm  -    -   

Total [a]  4.75  5.65 

(b) Other Non-Operating income
Subsidy from District Industries Centre (DIC)  -    28.24 
Profit on sale of Plant and Equipments  42.52  2.44 
Miscellaneous Income
 - Other Income  0.96  0.01 
 - Sundry Balances written back  2.07  1.60 

Total [b]  45.55  32.29 

Total [ a+ b ]  50.30  37.94 
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2024-25 2023-24
24 COST OF MATERIAL CONSUMED POY - YARN:

Opening Stock  345.84  384.37 
Add:  Purchases during the year  20,603.54  21,443.85 
Less: Closing Stock  337.24  345.84 

Total  20,612.14  21,482.38 

25 CHANGES IN INVESTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS:
Inventories - at close
 Finished Goods  754.73  975.28 
Inventories - at commencement
 Finished Goods  975.28  594.28 

Total  220.55  (381.00)

26 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE:
(a) Salaries and Wages  522.68  509.18 

(Including ₹ 72.00 Lakhs (Previous Year ₹ 72.00 Lakhs) paid as 
directors remuneration)

(b) Contribution to Provident Fund  19.35  19.81 
(c) Staff Welfare Expenses  7.93  5.95 

Total  549.96  534.94 

26.1    	 As per Indian Accounting standard 19 “Employee benefits”, the disclosure as defined are given below
          	 Defined Contribution Plans 
          	 During the year, the Company has recognized the following amounts as expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss : 

Employer's Contribution to Provident Fund  5.85  5.98 
Employer's Contribution to  Family Pension Fund  12.73  13.04 

A	 Defined Benefit Plan
	 As per Ind AS 19 “Employee Benefits”,  the disclosure of Employee benefits as defined in the Accounting Standard 	

for Gratuity are given below:		
Assumptions 2024-25 2023-24
Mortality IALM (2012-14) 

Urban
IALM (2012-14) 

Urban
Rate of Discounting 6.89% 7.21%
Rate of Salary increase 5.00% 5.00%
Rate of Employee Turnover 2.00% 2.00%
Mortality Rate After Employment NA NA

Change in the Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation
Present Value of Benefit Obligation at the Beginning of the year  59.96  44.85 
Interest Cost  4.32  3.36 
Current service cost  6.92  6.15 
Transferred Out/Divestment  -    (0.36)
Benefit Paid Directly by the Employer  -    -   
Benefit Paid from the Fund  (10.08)  (8.35)
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligations - Due to Change in 
Demographic Assumptions

 -    -   

Actuarial (Gains)/losses on Obligation - Due to change in financial 
assumptions

 1.87  1.45 

Actuarial (Gains)/losses on Obligation - Due to experience  2.61  12.86 
Present Value of Benefit Obligation at the End of the period  65.61  59.96 
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Assumptions 2024-25 2023-24
Change in Fair Value of Plan Assets
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the beginning  40.56  36.49 
Interest Income  2.93  2.73 
Employer Contributions  19.00  9.80 
Assets Transferred In/Acquisitions  10.97  -   
(Assets Transferred Out/ Divestments)  (0.36)  -   
Benefit Payments from Plan Assets  (10.08)  (8.35)
Return on plan assets, excluding interest income  0.79  (0.11)
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the end  63.81  40.56 
Net liability recognised in the Balance Sheet 1.80 19.40

Components of Defined Benefit Cost recognised in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss under Employee Benefit Expenses:

Current Service Cost  6.92  6.15 
Net Interest Cost  1.40  0.63 
Defined Benefit Cost recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss  8.32  6.78 
Components of Defined Benefit Cost recognised in the 
Statement of Other Comprehensive Income:
Actuarial (Gain)/Losses on Obligation for the year  4.48  14.31 
Return on plan assets, excluding interest income  (0.79)  0.11 

Defined Benefit Cost recognised in the Statement of Other 
Comprehensive Income

 3.69  14.42 

	 Sensitivity Analysis
Projected Benefit Obligations on Current Assumptions  65.61  59.96 
Delta Effect of +1% change in Rate of Discounting  (5.53)  (4.88)
Delta Effect of -1% change in Rate of Discounting  6.54  5.79 
Delta Effect of +1% change in Rate of Salary Increase  6.60  5.86 
Delta Effect of -1% change in Rate of Salary Increase  (5.67)  (5.02)
Delta Effect of +1% change in Rate of Employee Turnover  1.04  1.14 
Delta Effect of -1% change in Rate of Employee Turnover  (1.20)  (1.32)

B Long Term Compensated Absences
Actuarial Assumptions
Mortality IALM (2012-14) 

Urban
IALM (2012-14) 

Urban
Rate of Discounting 6.89% 7.21%
Future Salary increase 5.00% 5.00%
Rate of Employee turnover 2.00% 2.00%

Expenses recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss 
 For Leave encashment  1.58  4.66 

These plans typically expose the Company to actuarial risk such as interest rate risk, longevity risk and salary risk.

Interest Rate Risk: A decrease in the bond interest rate will increase the plan liability.

Longevity Risk     : �The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the best estimate of the 
mortality of plan participants both during and after their employment. An increase in the life expectancy of 
the plan participants will increase the plan’s liability.

Salary Risk         : �The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of 
plan participants. As such, an increase in the salary of the plan participants will increase the plan’s liability.
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2024-25 2023-24
27 FINANCE COST:

Interest Expenses
   Interest on Loan and Borrowings from bank at amortised cost  0.36  17.91 
   Interest on Loans to related parties (Refer note no.32)  15.66  18.76 
   Other Interest
        Interest to Micro and small enterprise  0.09  3.55 
        Interest to Partnership firm  0.01  -   
        Interest on Late payment of TDS  0.01  -   
        Interest on Late payment of Suppliers bills  0.69  -   

 16.13  40.22 
Other Borrowing Costs  3.56  5.35  

Total  19.69  45.57 

28 DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSE: 2024-25 2023-24
Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment ( Refer note no.1)  255.15  254.82 
Amortisation on Other Intangible Assets ( Refer note no.2)  0.10  0.10 

Total  255.25  254.92 

29 OTHER EXPENSES: 2024-25 2023-24
(a) Manufacturing expenses

Packing materials  697.85  652.47 
Stores, Spares and Oil consumed  512.03  645.74 
Power and fuel  1,244.27  1,259.44 
Contract labour charges  371.75  372.36 
Repairs to Building  24.23  -   
Repairs to Plant and Machinery  11.41  19.56 
Repairs to Others  84.51  76.41 
Rent - Office  0.45  0.45 
Machine Hire Charges  3.48  2.65 
Rates and taxes  8.59  8.15 
Insurance  12.09  15.39 

 2,970.66  3,052.62 
(b) Establishment Expenses

Payment to Auditors [Refer Note No.30]  4.63  4.30 
Directors sitting fees  1.00  1.05 
Share of Loss from a Partnership Firm  0.06  0.14 
Donation  0.36  0.13 
Loss on sale  of Property Plant and Equipment  -    0.46 
Miscellaneous expenses  203.79  184.62 

 209.84  190.70 
(c) Selling and Distribution Expenses

Brokerage and Commission  210.42  298.13 
Allowances / ( Reversal) for Credit Impaired  (0.25)  0.23 
Bad Debts Written Off  0.28  0.11 
Debit Balance Written Off  0.07  0.20 
Discount Allowed  18.58  12.24 
Freight Charges  32.24  261.34  33.85  344.76 

Total  3,441.84  3,588.08 
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2024-25 2023-24
30 PAYMENT TO AUDITORS AS: (Excluding GST)

(a) Auditor
Statutory Audit Fees  3.20  3.00 
Tax Audit Fees  0.65  0.60 
Certification Fees  0.08  -   
Limited Review of Quarterly Result  0.30  0.30 

(b) Cost Audit Fees  0.40  0.40 
Total  4.63  4.30 

31 EARNINGS PER SHARE:

a. Net Profit/(Loss) after tax
    Profit attributable to Equity Shareholders (₹ In Lakhs)  (100.61)  52.36 
b. Weighted average number of Equity Shares  19,70,500  19,70,500 
c. Nominal value of Equity Shares  10  10 
d. Earnings per Share (Basic and diluted) in ₹  (5.11)  2.66 

32 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES:

a) Name of related parties and description of relationship:
i.  Key Management Personnel (KMP): Designation:

Name

Mr.Shahin N. Khemani Managing Director
Mr. Rahul A. Khemani  Executive Director & CFO
Mr.Rohit Pradeepkumar Bajaj Independent Director
Mrs.Tanya Singh Shah Independent Director
Mr. Siddharth A. Khemani Non-Executive,Non-Independent Director
Mr. Abhishek S. Kamdar Independent Director
Mr.Durgesh S. Shirsate 
(Date of Appointment w.e.f. 25.04.2023)
(Date of Resignation w.e.f. 01.10.2023)

Company Secretary & Compliance Officer

Mrs.Meena Jain   
(Date of Appointment w.e.f. 01.11.2023)
(Date of Resignation w.e.f. 31.10.2024)

Company Secretary & Compliance Officer

Ms.Binita Gosalia   
(Date of Appointment w.e.f. 04.11.2024)

Company Secretary & Compliance Officer

ii. Others 

Beekaylon Synthetics Private Limited Entities in which Key Management Personnel 
have control or significant influence Relative of 
DirectorJay Gee Rayons

Mr.Ashok K. Khemani }
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b) Transactions with related parties :
Sr. 
No.

Nature of Transactions Others Key Management 
Personnel and 

Relatives

Total

₹ ₹ ₹
1 Insurance Premium (Reimbursed)

Beekaylon Synthetics Private Limited  3.31  Nil  3.31
 (3.63)  (Nil)  (3.63)

2 Purchase of raw materials
Beekaylon Synthetics Private Limited  22,717.22  Nil  22,717.22

 (22,250.35)  (Nil)  (22,250.35)
3 Purchase of Packing Material

Beekaylon Synthetics Private Limited  2.38  Nil  2.38
 (4.71)  (Nil)  (4.71)

4 Repairs to Machinery,Others
Beekaylon Synthetics Private Limited  8.96  Nil  8.96

 (2.43)  (Nil)  (2.43)
5 Purchase of Property Plant & Equipment - Plant 

and Machinery
Beekaylon Synthetics Private Limited  0.15  Nil  0.15

 (Nil)  (Nil)  (Nil)
6 Sale of Finished Goods (YARN)

Beekaylon Synthetics Private Limited  3,143.57  Nil  3,143.57
 (3,804.22)  (Nil)  (3,804.22)

7 Sale of Job Work
Beekaylon Synthetics Private Limited  1.74  Nil  1.74

 (Nil)  (Nil)  (Nil)
8 Sale of Store Spares

Beekaylon Synthetics Private Limited  2.79  Nil  2.79
 (0.81)  (Nil)  (0.81)

9 Sale of Packing Materials
Beekaylon Synthetics Private Limited  2.41  Nil  2.41

 (3.38)  (Nil)  (3.38)
10 Sale of Scrap

Beekaylon Synthetics Private Limited  40.05  Nil  40.05
 (44.84)  (Nil)  (44.84)

11 Sale of Property Plant & Equipment - Plant and 
Machinery
Beekaylon Synthetics Private Limited  18.96  Nil  18.96

 (9.73)  (Nil)  (9.73)
12 Remuneration to Director

Rahul A. Khemani  Nil  36.00  36.00
 (Nil)  (36.00)  (36.00)

Shahin N. Khemani  Nil  36.00  36.00
 (Nil)  (36.00)  (36.00)

13 Remuneration to Company Secretary
Durgesh Shamkant Shirsate  Nil  Nil  Nil

 (Nil)  (1.64)  (1.64)
Meena Bharat Jain  Nil  5.29  5.29

 (Nil)  (3.28)  (3.28)
Binita Gosalia  (Nil)  3.51  3.51

 (Nil)  (Nil)  (Nil)
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14 Director Sitting Fees
Rohit Pradeepkumar Bajaj  Nil  0.25  0.25

 (Nil)  (0.25)  (0.25)
Siddharth A. Khemani  Nil  0.25  0.25

 (Nil)  (0.25)  (0.25)
Abhishek S kamdar  Nil  0.25  0.25

 (Nil)  (0.25)  (0.25)
Tanya Singh Shah  Nil  0.25  0.25

 (Nil)  (0.30)  (0.30)
15 Interest Expenses incurred on unsecured loan 

taken
Ashok K Khemani  Nil  9.00  9.00

 (Nil)  (9.00)  (9.00)
Shahin N. Khemani  Nil  1.22  1.22

 (Nil)  (4.32)  (4.32)
Jay Gee Rayons  5.44  Nil  5.44

 (5.44)  (Nil)  (5.44)
16 Gratuity (Reimbursed)

Beekaylon Synthetics Private Limited  10.97  Nil  10.97
 (0.36)  (Nil)  (0.36)

17 Interest Paid to Partnership Firm
Jay Gee Rayons  0.01  Nil  0.01

 (Nil)  (Nil)  (Nil)
18 Share of Loss from Partnership Firm

Jay Gee Rayons  0.06  Nil  0.06
 (0.14)  (Nil)  (0.14)

19 Repayment of Unsecured Loan
Shahin N. Khemani  Nil  48.00  48.00

 (Nil)  (Nil)  (Nil)
20 Investment in Partnership Firm at year end

Jay Gee Rayons  0.05  Nil  0.05
 (0.05)  (Nil)  (0.05)

21 Balance Payable at year end  -
Jay Gee Rayons  0.20  Nil  0.20

 (0.14)  (Nil)  (0.14)
22 Balance Recoverable /Receivable at year end

Beekaylon Synthetics Private Limited  3.44  Nil  3.44
 (5.65)  (Nil)  (5.65)

23 Balance Payable at year end
Beekaylon Synthetics Private Limited  Nil  Nil  Nil

 (103.55)  (Nil)  (103.55)
24 Advance to Suppliers

Beekaylon Synthetics Private Limited  14.33  Nil  14.33
 (Nil)  (Nil)  (Nil)

25 Loan payable to Directors and Other- at year end
Ashok K Khemani  Nil  100.00  100.00

 (Nil)  (100.00)  (100.00)
Shahin N. Khemani  Nil  Nil  Nil

 (Nil)  (48.00)  (48.00)
Jay Gee Rayons #  60.40  Nil  60.40
# Firm wherein Partners are the shareholders of 
the Company

 (60.40)  (Nil)  (60.40)
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32.1	 Related party relationship is as identified by the management and relied upon by the Auditors.
32.2	 Previous year figures are given in brackets.
32.3	 Amount includes GST wherever applicable
32.4	 Related party transactions were made on term equivalent to those that prevail in an arm’s length transactions.	

2024-25 2023-24
33 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMITTMENTS: ` In Lakhs ` In Lakhs

(To the extent not provided for)
 (i) Disputed Income Tax Liabilities/Demand : - 3.90
(ii) Outstanding Bank Guarantee 207.10  244.40

34 PARTICULARS ABOUT INVESTMENT IN PARTNERSHIP FIRM:
Name of the Firm - Jay Gee Rayons
(Based on Management certified financial statement of Partnership firm)

Name of the Partners

As at 31.03.2025
Fixed Capital

Account
Current Capital

Account
Total Capital

Account
Share of

Profit/Loss
of each Partner` ` `

M/s.Beekaylon Synthetics Private Limited  0.050  (0.23)  (0.18) 10%
M/s.Blue Chip Tex Industries Ltd.  0.045  (0.20)  (0.16) 9%
M/s.Indotex Export House LLP  0.045  (0.20)  (0.16) 9%
M/s.Sangam Syntwist Textile Private Limited  0.045  108.98  109.03 9%
Mr. Nand K. Khemani  0.045  (0.35)  (0.31) 9%
Mr. Ashok K. Khemani  0.045  (0.09)  (0.05) 9%
Mr. Rahul A. Khemani  0.045  (0.35)  (0.31) 9%
Mr. Siddharth A. Khemani  0.045  (0.32)  (0.28) 9%
Mr. Shahin N. Khemani  0.045  (0.35)  (0.31) 9%
Mrs. Nitika S. Khemani  0.045  (0.35)  (0.31) 9%
Mrs. Rishma R. Khemani  0.045  (0.35)  (0.31) 9%

Total  0.50  106.19  106.69 

Name of the Partners

As at 31.03.2024
Fixed Capital

Account
Current Capital

Account
Total Capital

Account
Share of

Profit/Loss
of each Partner` ` `

M/s.Beekaylon Synthetics Private Limited  0.050  (0.16)  (0.11) 10%
M/s.Blue Chip Tex Industries Ltd.  0.045  (0.14)  (0.10) 9%
M/s.Indotex Export House LLP  0.045  (0.14)  (0.10) 9%
M/s.Sangam Syntwist Textile Private Limited  0.045  102.86  102.91 9%
Mr. Nand K. Khemani  0.045  (0.28)  (0.24) 9%
Mr. Ashok K. Khemani  0.045  (0.04)  0.01 9%
Mr. Rahul A. Khemani  0.045  (0.28)  (0.24) 9%
Mr. Siddharth A. Khemani  0.045  (0.25)  (0.21) 9%
Mr. Shahin N. Khemani  0.045  (0.28)  (0.24) 9%
Mrs. Nitika S. Khemani  0.045  (0.27)  (0.23) 9%
Mrs. Rishma R. Khemani  0.045  (0.27)  (0.23) 9%

Total  0.50  100.75  101.25      

35	 Previous year’s immaterial amounts have been regrouped and reclassified, wherever necessary, to correspond with 
those of the current year.

36	 The company’s main business segment is manufacturing of polyester texturised yarn and sale in the domestic market. 
Hence, there are no separate reportable segments as per Ind AS 108 “Operating Segment”. Revenue from one customer 
contributed ₹ 2,850.58 Lakhs ( i.e. 10% or more ) to the Company’s revenue for 2024-25 and revenue from one customer 
contributed ₹ 3,442.34 Lakhs (i.e. 10% or more) to the Company’s revenue for 2023-24.
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37. Additional Regulatory Information

1.	 Fair Value of Investment Property

	 The Company do not have any Investment Property

2.	 Loans or advances granted to Promoters, Directors, KMPs and Related Parties

	 The Company has not granted any loan or advance in nature of loan to promoters,directors,KMPs and other related 
parties that are repayable on demand  or without specifying any terms or period of repayment.

3.	 Details of Benami Property held

	 There are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the 
Prohibition of Benami Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

4.	 Borrowings from banks on the basis of security of current assets

	 The Company has obtained borrowings from bank on the basis of security of current assets wherein quarterly returns/
statements of current assets as filled with the banks, required information as under.

` In Lakhs
Financial 

Year 
ended

Quarter 
Ended

Name of Bank Securities [Current 
Assets]

As per the 
books of 
Accounts

As per the 
Quarterly 
Return /

Statement

Difference    
( 5-6)

Reason 
for 

Material 
difference

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
` ` `

2024-25 30-06-2024 Axis Bank Limited Bank has intimated to discontinue the practice of submitting 
Financial follow up report (FFR) Statement from December, 
2022 quarter ending and thereafter and accordingly Company 
is not required to submit the quarterly statement and Loan 
repaid during the year.

30-09-2024 Axis Bank Limited Same as above
31-12-2024 Axis Bank Limited Same as above
31-03-2025 Axis Bank Limited Same as above

` In Lakhs
Financial 

Year 
ended

Quarter 
Ended

Name of Bank Securities [Current 
Assets]

As per the 
books of 
Accounts

As per the 
Quarterly 
Return /

Statement

Difference    
( 5-6)

Reason 
for 

Material 
difference

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
` ` `

2023-24 30-06-2023 Axis Bank Limited Bank has intimated to discontinue the practice of submitting 
Financial follow up report (FFR) Statement from December, 
2022 quarter ending and thereafter and accordingly Company 
is not required to submit the quarterly statement.

30-09-2023 Axis Bank Limited Same as above
31-12-2023 Axis Bank Limited Same as above
31-03-2024 Axis Bank Limited Same as above

	 # Other Current Assets includes
  	 Cash and cash equivalents
   	 Bank Balances other than cash and cash equivalent
   	 Deposits with banks
   	 Other financial assets
   	 Other current assets

5	 Wilful Defaulter

	 The Company is not declared as wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lenders.

Notes on Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025 ` In Lakhs
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6	 Relationship with struck off Companies

	 The Company did not have any transactions with Company struck off under section 248 of Companies Act,2013 or 
section 560 of Companies Act, 1956, considering the information available with the Company.

7	 Registration of charges or satisfaction

	 The Company does not have charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with the Registrar of Companies.

8	 Number of Layers of Companies

	 The Company do not have any parent or subsidiary company and accordingly, the compliance with the number of layers 
prescribed under clause (87) of

	 section 2 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable for the years under consideration.

9	 The ratios for the year ended 31st March, 2025 and 31st March, 2024 are as follows

Sr.
No. Type of ratio Measured 

in Numerator Denominator
Ratio % 

Variance

Reason for variance 
exceeding 25% 
Compared to 
previous year2023-24 2022-23

1 Current ratio Times Current assets Current 
Liabilities

3.15 2.15  46.51 Current ratio 
improves due to 
better management of 
working capital.

2 Debt-equity 
ratio

Times Total Debt (i) Shareholder 
Fund

0.06 0.16  (62.50) Improvement in debt 
equity ratio resulting 
from repayment of 
debt.

3 Debt service 
coverage ratio

Times Earning 
available for 
debt service (ii)

Debt service (iii) 2.51 1.31  91.60 Improvement in debt 
service coverage 
ratio resulting from 
repayment of debt.

4 Return on 
equity ratio

% Net profit after 
tax - Pref. 
Dividend

Average 
shareholders 
Equity

 (3.71) 1.89  (296.30) Return on equity ratio 
decrees due to decline 
in profitability.

5 Inventory 
turnover ratio

Times Cost of goods 
sold

Average 
Inventory

28.35  31.74  (10.68) NA

6 Trade 
receivable 
turnover ratio

Times Revenue from 
operations

Average Trade 
Receivable

40.43  27.60  46.49 Trade receivable 
turnover ratio 
improves due to 
better management of 
collection.

7 Trade payables 
turnover ratio

Times Net credit 
purchase

Average Trade 
Payables

43.16  37.81  14.15 NA

8 Net capital 
turnover ratio

Times Revenue from 
operations

Working capital 19.92  22.05  (9.66) NA

9 Net profit ratio % Net profit after 
tax  

Revenue from 
operations

 (0.40)  0.20  (300.00) Net profit ratio 
unfavourable due to 
loss incurred.

10 Return 
on capital 
employed

% Earning before 
interest and 
taxes

Capital 
employed

 (3.54)  3.20  (210.63) Return on capital 
employed is  negative 
due to loss incurred

11 Return on 
investments-
unquoted

% Income earned Average 
Investments

 (0.14)  (0.33)  (57.58) Return on unquoted 
investments ratio 
decrease due to loss 
of  the firm.

	 Note:
[i] 	 Total debt = Non current and current borrowing
[ii] 	 Earnings for debt service = Profit after tax + non cash operating expenses + Interest on term loan
[iii] 	 Debt service = Interest on term loans + Principal repayment of term loan
[iv] 	 Capital Employed = Tangible net worth + Total DEBT + Deferred liabilities
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10	 Compliance with approved Scheme of Arrangement

	 There are no Scheme of Arrangement approved by the Competent Authority in terms of Sections 230 to 237 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 during the year.

11	 Utilisation of Borrowed funds and share premium

a. 	 No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other 
sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities 
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, 
whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or 
on behalf of the company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the  
Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

b. 	 No funds have been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities 
(“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, 
whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or 
on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf 
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

12	 Undisclosed Income

	 The Company do not have any transactions which are not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered 
or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessment under the Income Tax Act, 1961

13	 Details of Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency.

	 The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency during the financial years.

38 	 Capital Management

	 The Company’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor , creditor and market confidence 
and to sustain future development of the business. Management monitors the return on capital, as well as the level of 
dividends to equity shareholders.

	 The Company monitors capital using adjusted net debt to equity ratio for the purpose, adjusted net debt is defined as 
total debt less cash and bank balances.

	 Gearing ratio

 As at
31st March 2025

 As at
31st March 2024

Non-current Borrowings  160.40  208.40 
Current Borrowings  -    234.85 
Gross Debt  160.40  443.25 
Less: Cash and Cash Equivalent  7.75  16.40 
Less: Other Bank Deposits  24.34  61.76 
Adjusted Net Debt  128.31  365.09 
Total Equity (as per Balance Sheet)  2,652.26  2,775.33 
Adjusted Net Debt - Equity Ratio  0.05  0.13 
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39 Corporate Social Responsibility 2024-25 2023-24

a) Unspent / (excess spent) CSR amount of previous years  -  9.20 
b) Gross CSR amount required to be spent by the company for the 

respective Financial Year
 -  - 

Total CSR amount required to be spent  -  9.20
c) Amount Spent during the year

i) construction and acquisition of assets  -
ii) on the Purpose other than (i) above  -   -

 - on promoting education#  - -
iii) Contribution to PM CARES Fund ( Being Unspent CSR amount 

of FY 2022-23 transferred)
 -  9.20 

Total CSR amount spent during the year  -  9.20 
Amount charged to Profit and Loss under the head Corporate Social 
Responsibility expenses.

- -

40	 Financial instruments

	� The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Company’s financial assets and liabilities

Particulars

 As at 31st March 2025  As at 31st March 2024

Carrying 
Amount

Level of input used in Carrying 
Amount

Level of input used in

 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3  Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financial Assets

Investment* - - - - - - - -
Carried at Amortised Cost

Trade receivable - Net  556.64 - - -  669.47 - - -
Cash and Bank Balances  49.30 - - -  95.72 - - -
Other financial Assets  18.88 - - -  22.39 - - -
Financials Liabilities

Carried at Amortised Cost

Borrowings  160.40 - - -  443.25 - - -
Trade payables  487.36 - - -  623.75 - - -
Other financial liabilities  45.97 - - -  45.79 - - -

	 * Excludes Financial assets measured at cost (Refer note 3)	
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Interest Rate Risk	 		
The exposure of the company’s borrowing  at the end of the reporting period are as follows

Particulars As at 
31st March 2025

As at 
31st March 2024

Loans
Long term Floating Loan  -    4.27 
Long term Fixed Loan  160.40  208.40 
Short term Overdraft  -    230.58 

Total  160.40  443.25 

Interest rate Sensitivity - Impact of interest expenses for the year on 1% change in interest rate

Particulars
As at 31st March 2025* As at 31st March 2024*
Up Move Down Move Up Move Down Move

impact on equity  -  -  -  -
impact on profit or loss  -  - - -

*No material impact of interest expenses on profit or loss on 1% change in interest rate

Financial Risk Management

The company’s activities expose to credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk. The Company senior management oversees 
the management of these risks.

i)	 Credit Risk

	 Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counter party to a financial instruments fails to 
meet it’s financial obligation and such obligation mainly arise from receivables from customers and loans and advances. 
Credit risk is managed through establishing credit limits and continuously monitoring the credit worthiness of customers.

	 As at 31st March, 2025 the carrying amount of financial assets exposure to credit risk was ₹ 623.39 Lakhs ( ₹ 735.92 
Lakhs as at 31st March 2024), being representing balances with banks, short term deposits with banks, trade receivables 
and other financial assets.

	 The ageing of trade receivables as of balance sheet date is given below :

	 Credit risk from balances with banks is managed by the Company’s treasury department. The objective is to minimize 
the concentration of risks and therefore mitigate financial loss.					   

ii) 	 Liquidity risk

	 Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the Company cannot meet its financial obligations. The Company’s approach to 
managing liquidity is to ensure , as far as possible , that it will have sufficient liquidity to meets its liabilities when they 
are due and principal source of liquidity are cash and cash equivalents that are generated from business operation.

	 The Company has obtained term Loans and fund and non fund based working capital loan from bank and others.

	 Following are the contractual maturities of loans obtained :

	 Maturity profile of loans as on 31st March 2025

Below 3 
months

3-6 
months

6-12 
months

1-3 
years

3-5 
years

Above 5 
years

Total

Secured Loan
Loan from Bank-Long Term* -  -    -    -    -    -   -
Loan from Bank-Short Term -  -    -  -  -   -
Unsecured Loan
Loan From Directors and Other  -    -    -    160.40  -    -    160.40 
Total -  -    -    160.40  -  -    160.40 

	 * Including ₹ Nil Lakhs as prepaid finance charges
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	 Maturity profile of loans as on 31st March 2024

Below 3 
months

3-6 
months

6-12 
months

1-3 
years

3-5 
years

Above 5 
years

Total

Secured Loan
Loan from Bank-Long Term*  4.27  -    -    -    -    -    4.27 
Loan from Bank-Short Term  230.58  -    -    -    -    -    230.58 
Unsecured Loan
Loan From Directors and Other  -    -    -    208.40  -    -    208.40 
Total  234.85  -    -    208.40  -    -    443.25 

	 * Including Rs.0.90 Lakhs as prepaid finance charges

iii)	 Market Risk :

	 Market risk is the risk of any loss in future earnings, in realizable fair values or of in future cash flows of the Company 
that may result from change in price of a financial instrument. The value of financial instrument may change as a result 
of change in interest rates, foreign currency exchange rates.

	 The Company primarily is exposed to interest rate risk. The Company presently not exposed to exports and imports 
transactions risk.

41	 Audit Trail

	 In accordance with requirement under the  proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 applicable 
from April 1, 2023.

a) 	 The Company has maintained proper books of account as prescribed under Section 128(1) of the Companies 
Act, 2013 (as amended). The books of accounts are maintained in electronic mode using an in house developed 
accounting software. Back-ups of books of account and other relevant books and papers maintained in electronic 
mode are kept as per the policy of the Company. The back-up of the accounting system is kept in a server 
physically located in India and is done on a daily basis.

(b) 	 The Company has used said accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of 
recording audit trail (edit log) facility at application level and the same has operated throughout the year for all 
relevant transactions recorded in the software. 

(c)	 Further there were no instances of audit trail feature being tampered with in respect of the said software and the 
audit trail has been preserved by the Company as per the statutory requirements for record retention.

41	 Approval of Financial Statement

	 The Financial Statements were approved for issue by the Board of Directors on May 21, 2025.

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board 

For D K P & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 126305W

Shahin N. Khemani
Managing Director
DIN: 03296813

Rahul A. Khemani 
Director - Chief Financial Officer
DIN: 03290468

Pooja Jain
Partner
Membership No. 185563

Binita Gosalia
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer
 ACS: 25806

Place: Mumbai
Dated: May 21, 2025

Place: Mumbai
Dated: May 21, 2025

	



Notes





If Undelivered, please return to :
Blue Chip Tex Industries Limited
Office no. 15/16/17, 1st floor, Maker Chambers III,
Jamnalal Bajaj Road, Nariman Point,
Mumbai - 400 021 D
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